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I ndcpcndcnt Auditor's Reporl
'l o thc Mcmbcrs of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
l'he accounls of AJANTA PHARMA MAURI'|IUS L'fD are being audited under the local laws
of the country by the statutory auditor for the period lst Jan 2024 to 31st December 2024.
Standalone F-inancial Statements of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. for the period lst
April 2024 to 31st March 2025. The holding company Ajanta Pharma Limited (lndia) follows
thc pcriod lst April 2024 to 31st March 2025. In order to consolidate the accounts of Ajanta
I)harma Mauritius Ltd with that of the holding company, we have been appointcd by the

managsmcnt of the company to audit the reinstated accounts ol AJAN'I'A PI In RMA
MALIRIIIUS L'fD. for the period lst April 2024 to 3lst March 2025 undcr thc companics Act
in aocordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (lnd AS).

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS hnancial slatemenls ol AJAN'I'A
Plln I{MA MAURITIUS I-TD. ("the Company") comprising of thc Standalonc l]alancc Shcet as

at 3 I st March 2025,Ihe Standalone Statcment of Profit and Loss (including othcr comprchcnsivc
income), thc Standalone Cash Flow Statemenl, for thc year then ended, and a summary of the

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the

Standalone Ind AS financial statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting policies
lbllowed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Standalone financial statements have bccn prcparcd
solcly to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its consolidated financial statcments.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givcn to us,

thc alorcsaid Standalone financial statements give thc information requircd by the Act in thc
manncr so required and give a true and lair view in conlormity with the accounting principlcs
gcncrally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025, and

profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

llasis for Opinion
We conductcd our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specilied under
scction 143(10) of thc Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards arc

Iurthcr describcd in the luditor's Responsibilities ./br the ludit of the ./inancial stolemenls
scction ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the Code ol Lthics
issued by the Institute ol Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requircments
that are relcvant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions ol the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulhlled our other ethical rcsponsibilitics in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believc that the audit evidence
we havc oblaincd is sui'ficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Kcy Audit Mattcrs
Key audit mattcrs arc those matters that, in our professional judgment, werc of most significancc
in our audit ofthe financial statements ofthe current period. l'hese matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in lorming our opinion thcreon.
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using thc going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
thc Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

'fhose Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process in accordance with thc group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Rcsponsibility
Our objcctives are to obtain reasonable assurancc about whcther thc financial statements as a
whole are lrec from material misstatement, whethcr due to fraud or crror, and to issue an
auditor's rcport thal includes our opinion. Reasonablc assurancc is a high level of assurancc. but
is not a guarantce that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considercd
matcrial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecled to influencc thc
economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

l{cport on Othcr Lcgal and Rcgulatorl Requircmcnts

As rcquired by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowlcdge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so lar as it appears from our examination ofthose books

(c) 'l hc llalance Shcet, thc Statemenl of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Slatement dcalt wilh
by this l{eport are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Com al.)ics (Accounts)

<t.
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Managcment's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
'l'hc Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of thc
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalonc financial
stalcmenls that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial pcrformancc, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally acceptcd in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. -fhis

rcsponsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prcventing and
dctccting frauds and other irregularities; selcclion and applicalion of appropriatc accounl.ing
policies; making judgmenls and estimates that are rcasonable and prudent; and dcsign.
implcmcnlation and maintenancc of adcquate internal financial controls. that wcrc opcrating
cffcctivcly for ensuring the accuracy and completcness of the accounling rccords, rclevant 1o thc
preparation and presentation ofthe financial statement that give a true and fair view and arc frcc
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on 3ls1 March, 2025
takcn on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3lst March,
2025 ftom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(0 With respect to the other malters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordancc with
Rule I I ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the bcst ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.'l he Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. 'l'hc Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Invcstor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

/or G.R.Modi& Co
Chartered Accountanls
Iirm's number: I12617W

CA Swapnil Modi
Partner
Membership number: 107574
Mumbai
Date:22nd April2025

UDIN No 251 07 57 4BMJGLL686 1
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Ajanta Pharma (Matritius) Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
os dl 3 I March 2025

(Currency: MUR)

Assets

Non-current {sset8

Property, plant and equipment

Right to use assets

Financial assels

Other financial assets

Totll non-currcnt rlsets
Currcnt assets

Invenlories

Fanancial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets

Totrl currcnt rlsets

Totrl ossets

f,quity And Liabilitie3
Equity
Equity share capital

Other Equity

Lirbilities
Non curr.nt lirbilities

l,ease liability

Curr.nt lirbilities
Olher cunent liabilities

Note
3l M.rch 2025 Jl Mrrch 2024

MAU.RS MAU. Ri

l9l,l57 |,736,582
- 387,983

401,634

2,526,199

146,337,103

t73,246,1t6
68,10t,027

494,100,985

t0

lt
l2

286,635

471.192

23,105,661

206,183,664

68,077,750

276,422,300

573,789,375

61,3?9,100

429,732,606

8

E

9

574,267,167 496,621,184

61,379,100

471,855,813

Totrf.qrity 539,234,9'13 49l,111,706

393,743

Totrl equity and lirbilities

Material accounting policies

The notes refened lo above form an integral part ofthe consolidat€d finrncial statements

As per oul report of cven date atiached

In terms ofour report attached
For C. R. Modi & Co. For rnd on behrlfof Borrd of Dircctors

Swrpnil Modi
Partner

Mumbri, 22 April 2025

UDIN : 25l07574BMJGLL6E6l

t1 35,032,194 5,121,735

Totsl currcnt lisbilities 35.032.194 5,121,735

514261.167 496,627,1U

t4
l)

l6

Chartered Accountr
(ICAI FRI\L: -%

RITIUS l-r/c
/(*
AMA

K}

of Ajrntr Pba.m. (Mruritius) Limited

Munbri,22 April2025



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the ledr ehded 3l March 2025

(Cunency: MUR)

lncome

Revenue from opcrations

Olher income

Expenies
Purchase of stock-in.tlade
Changes in inventories of finished goods/work-in-progress/stogk-in-trade

Employee benefi ts expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other exp€nses

Total erpensas
Profit bcforc trx

Tax expense

Curent tax

Deffered lax

Profit for the yerr

Errning pcr equity shrre (B$ic & Diluted) (Frce vrl[. MURl00/-)

Material accounting policies

The notes refened to above form a[ integral p.n ofthe consolid.ted financial statements

As per our repon ofeven date attached

In tcrms ofour report sttachcd
l-or G, R, Modi & Co.
CbsrtGrcd Accountrntr

Swrpnil Modi
Partner

Mumbsi,22 April 2025

UDIN : 25l07574BMJGLI,686l

Not€
Jl Mrrch 2025 3l M.rch 2024

MAU. R! MAU. Rs

IE

l9
513,384,35t

5l3.38,tjsr

337,07t,968
162,890

337,241,858

64,455,33 r

2t4,939.405
36,434,340

4,50t
3t5,890

I t9,432,935
435,5t2,409
(9EJ40,ss | )

t4t,t56

Totrl inaomc

z0

2l
22

24

25

141,981,23 |

123,23t,642

55,997,152

55.? t9
14t,837,843
463,r03,587

50,2t0,764

2,t57,496

4t,t23,26E (98.481,707)

( t60.45)7t.40

For rnd on behrlfofBoard ofDirectors
of Ajrrtr Phrrm. (Mruritius) Limilcd

Director
Munbri,22 April2025
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 3l March 2025

(Currency: MUR)

Cssh llow from opanting activitias
Prcfil bcfore tax
Adjuslment for

D€preciation and amonisation exp€nse
Finance costs

3l M.r.h 2024
MAA. Rt

(98,340,551)

315,890
4,508

rsz,lpo) ( l4t,t se )
Nat casb ganc t d from oparrting rctlvitics @

Decrcas€ / (increas€) in trade and olher receivables
Decrease /(increase) in other non cunent assets
Decredse / (incr€ase) in other currenl assets

D€crease / (increase) in invenlories
Increase /(decrcase) in other cunenl liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in lrade payables

Crsh gcnaratcd from opcrrtions

Cash tlow fiom invasaing rctivitias
Cspilal exp€nditure on property, plant and equipment including capita
Prccceds from salc of fixed assels

Nct c.sb !s.d in invesaing rctivities

C.sh lloD from tinrnaiog rctivitica
Repaymenl oflease li6bility (including interest thcrcon)
Inler€st Daid

Nat casb nsad in tinrncing activitics

Nct ircraasa / (d.crarsc) itr casb ard crsh Gquivrtatrts

Cash and cash equivalents as al the b€ginning oftheyear

3l Mr.ch 2025
MAU. Rs

s0,280,7u

aa t'tt

(32,93?,548)

1t4,999
(170,005,?61)

t23,23t,642
29,9t0,458

6s0J76

|,E77,689
r,877,6E9

(393,743\

(393,743)

(23,274'

6t,l0l,02s

52,1t3,646
7t 511

( r06,345,935)
214,939,405
( 10,638,171)

(124,782,t 57\
(?2655,832)

5,44t,500
5,44E,500

(4,s08)
(4,s0r)

(67 )32996'

135,454,021

c.

Note :

I The abovc Cash Florr Stslement has been preparcd under'lndirect Method'as sel out in Accounting Slandard 7 (lnd AS - 7)
"S lalcment o f Cash Flow" under Secrion | 3I of lhe ComD6nies Act 20 I 3.

2 Cash comprises cash on hand, curent accounls snd deposils with bsnks. Cash equivalenls are sholrt-le.m balanccs (with ar
original maturily of thr€e months or less from the date ofscquisition).

Material accounting policies
'l hc noles refer€d to above form an integml pan ofthe consolidated fin&cial statements
As per our report ofeven date altached

In tarms ofo||r rcpora attrched
t'or G. R. Modi & Co,

(lcAl

For and oD b.hrlfof Borrd ofDiractors of
Ajrrtr Phrm. (Mruritius) Limit d

Director
Mumb.i,22 April2025

Sw!pnil Modi
Partner
Mumbri,22 April 2025
trDlN : 2510?5?4BMJGLL686l

casb flow beforc

6]{D
s lf
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2025

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Lrd. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Mauritius and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta pharma Ltd., India. The address of its
registered office is located at First Floor, Garage Hi-Tech Building, Eau partage, pamplemousses
Mauritius, 12l0l l. The Consolidated Financial statement (.,CFS") comprises the Company and its
subsidiary (referred to collectively as the ,.Grouy',).

The Group is primarily involved in manufacturing and marketing of speciality pharmaccutical
finished dosages.

The consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025 have been reviewed by
the Audit committee and subsequently approved by company's Board of Directors at its meeting
held on 22 April 2025.

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in all maierial aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Aciounting standards
(hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS') read with Rule 4 of the companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions oi the Act and accountin!
principles generally accepted in India.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
basis, except otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the company and its
wholly owned subsidiary Ajanta Pharma Mauritius (Infl) Ltd. The financial statem€nts of the
company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses after eliminating
intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profits resulting there from and are
presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Group's independent financial
statements. The statement ofprofit and loss and each component ofother comprehensive income are
attributed to the equity holders ofthe Company.

These consolidated financial statements ofthe company and its wholly owned subsidiary have becn
consolidated using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. When n€cessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries lo
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries used in consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that
ofthe Company i.e., year cnded 3l March 2025.

Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional Currency of the Company is Mauritian Rupee (MUR).

Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
crores.

.,

J.
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

6. Current / non-current classification:

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on currenVnon-current
classification.

An asset is current when it is:
. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for the pwpose oftrading, or
. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
r Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

Ieast twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as Non-Cunent.

A liability is current when it is:
. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for the purpose oftrading, or
. Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option ofthe counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue ofequity instruments do not affect its classification.
All other liabilities are freated as Non-Current.

Operating Cyclc
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their rcalisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of products / activities ofthe group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the group has determined its operating cycle
as l2 months for the purpose ofclassification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipm€nt

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost ofthe item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write offthe cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Leasehold Imorovement 20 vears
Fumiture. Fixtues & Fittinss 2 to 6 Years

Office Eouioments 2 to 4 vears
Plant & Machinerv 5 to 20 vears
Motor Vehicles 5 years

1

7.1

The asset's residual values and useful
reporting period. Where the carrying

lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each cnd of
amount of an asset is sreater than its estimated recoverable

r,iAlJiltTl'JS



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, planl and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement ofDrofit or loss.

7.2 Financiallnstrumcnts

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument ofanother entity.

Financial Assets

Classification

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business modcl
for managing the financial assets and the confactual cash flows characteristics ofthe financial assct.

Initial recognition and measur€ment

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atlributable to the acquisition
ofthe financial assct.

Subscqu€nt mcasurem€nt

F'or the purpose ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad calegories:
o Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCD
o Financial assets at amortised cost
When assels are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measur€d at amortised cost (net ofany write down for impairment, ifany)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold assels for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the eflective interest rate (EtR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising fiom impairment are recognised in the Statcment
ofprofit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensivc Income ("FVTOCI")

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive income

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (t,FVTPL')

Financial assets under this category arc measured initially as well as

value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.
at each reporting date at fair

- ': :'.
,/ _ i l.:./, " \-, '|\_
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to th€ Consolidatcd Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. AII other equiry
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling ofthe amounts from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Investment in Debt Instruments

A debt instmment is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCL Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as al amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FV'|"PL.
I)ebt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement ofprofit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or the Group has transfened its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Asscts

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, the Group
measurement and recognition of impairment loss
and trade receivables.

applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
on the financial assets that are debt instruments

Financial Liabilitics

Classification

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, bonowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and bonowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequ€nt measurement

Financial Iiabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for tradine
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or IosJ
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective lnterest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or pr€mium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part ofthe EIR. The EIR amonisation is included as hnance costs in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Dcrecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under thc Iiability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. when an existing financial liability is replaced by another fiom the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms ofan existing liability are substantially modified, such an

.. :'...i - - l:'r',,i' .
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respeclive carrying amounts is recognised in fte Statement
ofProfit and Loss.

Derivativc Financial lnstrument

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward cunency contracts to mitigate its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are canied as financial assets when lhe fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Inventories

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower ofcost (on moving weighted average basis)
and net realisable value, cost ofwhich includes duties and taxes. Cost of imported raw materials and
packing materials lying in bonded warehouse includes the amount of customs dufy. Finished
products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is arrived on weighted average basis.

The cost of lnventories has been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of convcrsion,
appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity and othcr
related cost incured in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs ofcompletion and selling expenses necessary to make the sale.

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for
and valued at net realisable value.

Goods and materials in lransit are valued at actual cost incurred up to lhe date of balancc sheet.
Materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down, if the
finished products in which they will be used are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixcd
deposit/highly liquid invcstments with original maturity period of threc months or less thal arc
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in valuc.
For the purpose ofthe statement ofcash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist ofcash and shon-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an
integral part ofthe group's cash management.

Cash Flow Statemcnt

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects oftransactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals ofpast or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities ofthe Group are segregated.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date ofthe transaction.

1.4
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on thc balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign cunency items are canied at cost,

Any income or cxpense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restalement is
recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

1.7 R€venueRecognition

Revenue recognition under lnd AS I l5 (applicable from I April 2018)

Under Ind AS ll5, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a perfonnance obligation was
satisfied, i.e. when 'control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were
transferred to the customer.

Funher, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as

follows:

Step l: Identiry the conffact(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identiry the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the confiact

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Sale of Goods

The group applied Ind AS I l5 using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated retums and taxes collected from
customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the
cuslomer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control ofgoods is transferred upon
the shipment ofthe goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer.

'lhe transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is onlv recosniz,ed when it is

highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical expericncc,
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology
and assumptions used to estimate retums are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade
practices, historical trends, pasl experience and projected market conditions.

Interest income

lnterest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.

Dividend income
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Dividend from investmcnt is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established.

Incomefrom Export BeneJits and Other Incentiyes

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be comolied with- and the amounts will be received.

7.8 Employ€e Benelits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering service are classified as

short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences,
performance incentives etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the
period in which the employee renders related service.

(D Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

The Group pays Social Security Cost as per local regulations. The Croup has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted
for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the cxtent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the n€t present value of severance
allowances payable under the Employment Rights Act 2008 is provided for. The obligations
arising under this item are not funded.

(ii) Share-bascdcompensation
The Group has no share-based compensation plan.

7.9 Borrowing Costs

Bonowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Bonowing costs consist ofinterest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
bonowing of funds. Bonowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an

adjustment to the borrowing costs. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as

financial expenses over the term ofborrowing.

7.10 Lease

The Group's lease asset class primarily consisF of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses

whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset, the group assesses whether: ( l) the contract involves the usc of an identificd assel

(2) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period

ofthe lease and (3) the group has the right to direct the use ofthe asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for lcascs with
a term of twelve months or less (shortterm leases) and low value leases. For these short-1erm and
low value leases, the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expensc on a straight-line
basis over the term ofthe lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end ofthe
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or pdor to the commencemenl datc of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Righfof-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter ofthe lease term and useful life ofthe underlying asset. Right ofuse assets are eyaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that thcir carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the rccoverable amount (i.e. thc
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset

basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those flom other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease

payments. The lease payments are discounled using the generally accepted interest ratc. l.ease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjusfinent to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the

contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

For operating leases, rental incone is recognized on a straightJine basis over the term of the

relevant lease.

'l'ransition
Effective I April,20l9, the group adopted Ind AS I l6 "Leases" and applied thc standard to all lcasc
contracts existing on I April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjusEnent to retained eamings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discountcd at the
generally accepted interest rate and the right ofuse asset at its carrying amount as ifthe standard had

been applied sinco the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 3 l,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of
MUR 6,593,744 and a lease liability of MUR 6,593,744. The cumulative effect of applying the
standard, amounting to MUR Nil was debited to retained eamings, net of taxes. The effect of this
adoption is insignificanl on the profit before tax, profit for the period and eamings per share. Ind AS
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116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash

outflows from financing activities on account oflease payments.

The following is the summary ofpractical expedients elected on initial apPlication:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic

environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less

than 12 months of leasc term on the datc ofinitial application.

c. Excluded the initial direct costs from thc measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial applicalion.

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.

Accordingly, Ind AS I 16 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases

under lnd AS 17.

The interest mte applied to lease liabilities as at I April,2019 is 7o/o'

?.1I Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the.equity

holders of thl company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

pcriod. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the

equity holders of the iompany by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for

deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that

could h-ave been issu"d upon ionuetsion ofall dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential

equity sharcs are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares becn actually issued at

iair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as ofthe beginning ofthe period,

unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each

period presented.

7.12 Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and defened income tax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of plofit and loss except to-the extent

that it rclates to items reiognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other

comprehensive income. current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount

expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates

and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting datc and are reduced to the extent that it is no

longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

I.inancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reportcd in thc balancc

sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and thcre is an

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using rcspective Country's tax tates and tax

laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
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apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be

recovered or settled. The effect ofchanges in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilitics is

recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can

be utilized. The Group offsets cunent tax assets and cunent tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net

basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Defened income taxes are not provided on the undistributed eamings of subsidiaries where it is

expected that the earnings ofthe subsidiary will not be distibuted in the foreseeable future.

7.13 Divid€nds to Shareholders

Annual dividcnd distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividcnd paid is recogniscd on

approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

7.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Conting€nt Assets and Commitments

General
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (lcgal or

constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settlc the obligation, in respect ofwhich a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the

balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect thc current

best estimates.

If there is any expoctation that some or all ofthe provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is

recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is vinually certain. The cxpense

relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually ccrtain

reimbursement.

Ifthe effect ofthe time value ofmoney is material, provisions are discounted using a currenl prc-tax

rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
. A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation;
. A present obligation adsing fiom past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;

. A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is

remote.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Stalements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advanccs) issued to parties for
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Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arangements where lhe
Company has a binding obligation at the end of thc lease period to rcstore the leased premises in a

condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expectcd costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a currenl pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are

added lo or deducted liom the cost ofthe asset.

7.15 Fair value measuremcnt

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet

date in accordance with Ind AS I 13.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for thc following
material items in the statement offinancial position:
. Derivativc financial instruments are measured at fair value reccivcd from Bank.
. Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).
. Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Repon.

Fair value is the pricc that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measuement date.

'fhe fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markst participants
would use when pricing the asset or liabilify, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valualion techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use ofrelevant observable inputs

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowcst levcl input that

is significant 10 the fair value measurement as a whole:
. Level I Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
o Level 2 * Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
. Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to thc fair

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statemenls on a recuning basis, thc
Group determines whether transfers have occuned between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis ofthe nature, characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

7.16 Recentaccountingpronounc€mcnts

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing

standaxds. 'fhere is no such notification which would have been applicable from I April2023.

1.17 Critical accounting judgements, €stimates 8nd assumptions

'l'he preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounls of revenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. I lowever,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe assets or liabilities in future periods.

(a) Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether lhe arrangement is or
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease,

the Group separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into

those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis oftheir rclative fair values.

The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the lerms and conditions of the

arrangements that such contracts are in the nature ofoperating leases.

(b) Multipl€ el€ment contracts with vendors
The Group has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply ofgoods and

rcndering ofservices. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent ofthe value

of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, thc supplies and servic€s arc

accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies

with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have

been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and./or as Intangible assets, since the

Group has economic ownership in these assets The Group believes that the current

trealment represents the substance ofthe arrangement.

(c) Determinationoffunctionalcurretrcy
Each cntify in the group determines its own functional currency (the cunency of the primary

economic envfonment in which the entity operates) and items included in the financial

statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. lnd AS 2l, "The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates" prescribes the factors to be considered for
the purpose of determination of functional cunency. Management uses its judgement to
determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic efiects of the

underlying transactions, events and conditions.

(d) Property, Plant and equipment
Determination ofthe estimated useful life oftangible assets and the assessment as to which

components ofthe cost may be capitalized. Useful life oftangiblc assets is based on thc life

of useful livcvrates prescribed by the GAAPS of the respective countries. Assumptions also

necd to be tnade, when thc Company assesses, whethcr an asset may be capitalised and

which comDonents ofthe cost ofthe asset mav be capitalised.
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(e.)

(0

(e)

(h)

(i)

Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful livcs of lntangible assets.
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

Recognition and mcasurcment ofdefined benefit obligations
The obligation arising liom the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on the govemment bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-
employment benefi t obligations.

R€cognition ofdeferred tax assets and income tax
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differcnces to the exlent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
defened tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
canying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statcments.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to ta"r income and expcnse already
recordcd. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences ofaudits by the tax authorities ofthe respective countries in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of defened tax assels that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the levcl of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions
The recognition and mcasurement of olher provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary
fi'om the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Croup as it is not possiblc to predict
the outcome ofpending matters with accuracy.
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0) Allowrnce for uncollocted accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated inecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
wriften off when management seerns them not collectible. Impairment is made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
life ofthe financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk ofdefault
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end ofeach reporting period.

(k) Insuronce claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Group has reasonable certainty ofrecovery.

0) Impairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ('CGU')
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable arnount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. ln calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of gowth in
EBITDA, long term gowth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved.
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Notes to the Consolidrted Finrncial Strtements (Continued)

{curency: MUR)

3l March ?0?5

MAU. R3

Jl Mlrch 2024

lllAu. R3

Or[er Nor-Cur@l [in..cirl A.r.i!
(Unsecured, Considered Good wless othcNise statcd)

cleding Chdges of Uzbek hbtory

U.wur€d, considered good ule$ othwis. star.d

Csh.nd c$h .quivrle.tt

Balance with Banls - In cunent accounts

Advanccs to io rel.led pdr€s
Balance wilh statutory/Gor1. Authoriti.s

23,105,661 t46,297.t70

ll

206,t83,664 t73.246,|6
206,r8J,554 173,246,|6

ft,ll5 25.454
68.066.635 68,075.569

6&0?7,750 68,t0t.027

254,931.356

2t,484,944

t00,717.830

5,69E.709

216,421J00 106,416,539

l4 EquityShrle Clpitrl

Ordinary Sharcs ofMUR 100 each

ks!.d, Sublctibed & Prid up:
Ordinsry Shes of MUR | 00 each fully pdd up

3l M.rch 2025 ll M.rch l0r5 JI Mrrch 2(D4 3l M.r.h 2024

MAU. R! Numb.r ofsh..6 MAU. R!

t,000,000 100,000,000

613,?91 61,379,t00

1,000.000 100,000,000

613,19t 61.379,100

(.) Reconclll.lion of numb.r ofequlty !h.rs ourdrndinB.a th. b.ginning rnd ra rhe dd of tlte ye3. I

3l M.rch 2025 Jl Mr.ch 2025

NuEb.r ofshrA MAU. Rt

Number of shaes oursllndins as al thc begrhins of the yed
NMbfl of rhms oucr$ding as .t th. €nd of the yc.r

31M.rclr 2025 ll M.rch 2025

613,791

Nil

(b) Right!, preference! lnd rslriction! rx.ched to.lurs
The comp.ny has issued only one class ofordinary shncs wnh vonnS riShs haung I p.r vllue ofMU&100 per sh!r€.

During the y€ar ended 3 | March 2020, rnount per sh.rc of divid.nd rc@gnis.d Ns distributionr to .quity she.holders 6 MUR 7 l 1.28 p.r .quity shde (Pr. Yr. MUR 5 l4. l

tt lhe wcnr ol liqd.lnio. ofrhe comp.ny, rhe hold.rs ofequity sh$es willbe cntitlcd lo receiw rm.inins ssct3 ofthe conpany. The distribution witlb. in propornon tt
of equityrhar.sheld by 3haEholden.

(c ) D€iril. of€q!ity !h|r.holde holdinS more !h.n 5%

Ajeia Phanna Ltd., India

(d) Shfs r.r.B.d for isu. und.r oplion.

ll Mrrch 2024 3l M.rch 2024

Numbcr ofShrs MAU. R!

191

791

3l M.rch 2024 Jl M.rcn 202.1



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Notes to the Consolidrtcd Fin.rcirl StrtcD.lts (Continucd)

(CuftncyrMUR)

OTHER EQUITY

Bll|ncc .r rhc bcsiMirg ofrhc yrr.
Add : Trsfemd fim ScN.c|n6 ofltolit& t,ss

Etcnrng. Ilucturrion R..cw.

Sr.plui in rh.Strt.mcnt of Protit rnd lfit
Brlr!@ .t rhe beginning of thc yc.r

B.l.trc..t lheyefi erd
Totrl Oller Equity

lre li.bility
t e litbilily

Oih.r Curr.nt U.biliti.r

Xev.nle rron Op.ntiont

Finished Coods

Mircelheoc lnconc

Purch.$ ol Stock-in-Tndc (Rchr.d Prny)
Purch c of StocL-itr-Tr.d. ((xt.n)

Chrtrge! in lNenlori€ of Flnhhcd Goodr, Work-1.-progr€$ ,d Stock-ln-T le
lnvcntorld al tt€ end ofthcy.rr:

hvcraotilt rt thc D.gitrri!! ofth. y..r:

Efi.cloffo.eigr erchmg. tr rl.tlon

Totrl .hmg6 in lrv.!torl.! of Fini.h.d Co{d!, WorkjFp.osrs rnd Srocl-1.-Trrd. :

l5

ll Mrrcl2025
MAU. R,

3E0 192,755

t'o,ry2,1fi

3l Mirch i024
MAU.Ib

3E0, t9.756

110,192,756

r48,02t.556
(9E,4E1,707)

49539J49
429,7?2$05

39,?43
Jql'?'A

49,139,849

97,653,t l7
411$5si73

(A)

(E)

(c)

l4I,9tl13l

s5.954.441

42,688

5,12t,715

t12t,735

t,742,491
335,336,077

3it7,o?8,96E

6t,t(l),5!3
!J!4,llE

56530

361,276,704

565.352

2t4,171,U3
?t4,9J9,405

36,383,654

50.686

__-___-_:_
t6,434J40

23,t05,551

23.t05,661

l.{6,337,303

Tolll .h.ngd in rtrvdtorie. of Fini.h.d cood* WorL-iFpmgn r rnd Saoct -itr-] (D) - (A) + (C')

Empolt.. B.tr.ti. Etpd.d
Sdlrica. wlscr, Botrs md Allo$lncca
Contribotion ro Prcviddr lnd Odr.r Fund!
Strf Wclfe ExDeoses



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Note! ao th. Cor$lldrald lltrrtrcld StrtcDcrr! (Cotrdrucd)
ot at 3 I Lhrch N25

(CwrctEy: MLJR)

23 Flo.!c. Cort
o|r l* lidilily

24 D.prccl lor
Dllrlci|tim of Tufitlc An i! (X.dir mt 8)

x Otb." EIp..r!.
S.liog Ea.dr.r
Clcdns rrd FdEdi'g
Tfir[irs Eq.or..

Rmt
T.Lphoa4 T€Lx & Po.t gp

R.Fin to tirdnsy

Exchrg. Difrat|Ilc. (Nct)

rnpdnn.lt r6|t oo Ein|roid Arub
l,or! d ..lc/diic.rd ofFop.ri!,, d.d lld .qpiFr.d (-t)
MiEllm||. BF.r...

ll rr'tl2I3
UAU. rr

Jl Mrrd 29la
MAU, t!

I t,4!6,844
t9,aa9

450C
,tJI

315,t90
3l5t9O

69,146536
679,tOl

16,96t

55.719

---s1!:-
93,t93,763

5,r5t 914

12l,l99

tL2&t62
Tqrx

r04483
11,7U,757

l5,E3,|J7l
lalrcrl(!

l.,5?a
11,519,965

@*%
*( r',rrunrrrus )-.w
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Not€s to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 3l March 2025

Capital Management

Group's policy is to maintain a sfong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and markct
confidence and to sustain future development ofthe business. Management monitors rhe return (EBIT)
on capital, as well as thc level ofdividends to equity shareholders. position. fhe Group's objective for
capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the
growh of the Group. The Group delermines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans
and long-term and other strategic investment plans.

Group monitors capital using a ratio of ,adjusted net debt, to 'adjusted equity,. For this purposc,
adjusted net debt is defined as debt less cash and cash equivalents and curent inyestments. Adjusted
equity comprises all components ofequity.

Group's policy is to keep the Net debt equity ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted ner debt to equity ratio
at 3l March 2025 was as follows. MUR

27. Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Eamings per Share;

28. Employee Benefrts
As required by Ind AS 19

and Severance Allowance.
account:

'Employee Benefits', lhe Group offers its employees Social Security Cost
During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the

Particulars

Debt

Lcss: Cash ard Cash equivalents

Net Debt

Lquity

Net Debt to Equity ratio
B

AiB

3l March 2025

68,077,750

(68,077.750)

539,234,973

3l March 2024

68,101,027

(68,r0r.027)

491. t I I,706

Particulars

Basic rnd Diluted Eernings Per Shsrei

Profil attributable to Equiry shareholders- for Basic
EPS (MUR)
Add: Diluliv€ effect on profit (MUR)

Profir a$ributable to Equiry shareholdcrs for
computing Diluted EPS (MUR)
Wcighted Average Numbcr of Iiquity Shares
outstanding - for Basic EPS
Add: Dilutivc e{fect ofoption outstanding- Number of
Equity Shares
Wcighted Average Number of Equity Sharcs for
Drluted EPS
Facc Value per Equity Share (MUR)

Basic Earnings Per Share (M[JR)

Dil ted Earnings Per Shares (MllR)

B

C=A-B

D

E

F=D+E

A/D

c/F

3l l{arch 2025

48,t23,26E

4E,t23,268

6t3,791

613.79 |

100

78.40

78.,t0

3l Ntarch 202,t

(9E.4E r,707)

(98.481.707)

6t3.791

613.791

t00

(r60.4s)

( 160.15)

Particulars
Social Security Cost

Scvcrarce Allorvancc
'l otal

3l March 2025

1 | 6,109

5,015,296

5,191,405

3l :\tsrch 2024

202,766

202,166



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net presenl value of severance allowances
payable is provided for under the Employment Rights Act. It has been assumed that the rate of future
salary increases will be equal to the discount rate.

29. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk manaqement

Fair value measurements MUR
3l March 2025

FVTPL Amortised Cost

- 206,183,664

- 286,635

- 68,077,750

- 274,s4E.049

Finsncirl Instruments by category

Finsncirl Assets

Trade Receivables

Olher Non-Curlent Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Finrnciel Assets

Finrncirl Liebilities

Non-currcnt Leasc Liability

Other Cunent Financisl Liabililies

Totrl Fin.ncirl Lirbilities

3l March 2024

F'VTPL Amortised Cost

35,032,194

35,032,194

t73,246.t 16

40 t,634

68. t0t.027

24t,718,711

393;7 43

5,121,735

5.5r5,478

Fair value measurement oflease Iiabilities is not reouired.

Level I -The hierarchy in level I includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like Mark to
Market Derivative and Non-convertible Debentures) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use ofobservable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value as instrument are observable. the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Group has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:
o Credit risk
. Liquidity risk
. Market risk
. Cunency risk

Risk management framcwork
Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of thc
company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company's risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee.

Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by ir, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherencc to limits. Risk manasement
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the droup's
activities. Group, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

trm
Q\ t07574 ,*Q*#



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

Croup's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy ofthe risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit. Intemal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk managcment controls and
procedures, the results ofwhich are reported to the audit committee.

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and flom its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and mutual funds, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
rnstruments.

lmpairment:

The following table provides information about the exposwe to credit risk and expected credit loss
for trade receivables: MUR

3l March 2025

Ctrrying amount Weighted average loss ratc Loss allowance

Nol due

Past due upto | 80 dalrs

P.rst due l8l-365 days

33,571,601

142,804,995

29,807,068

206,183.664

0%

0%

004

Crrrying Nmount

t7,259,904

97,941,4t3

58,044,800

17t,246,t16

3l March 2024

Weighted everrge loss

rate

0%

0%

00/o

Loss sllowince

Not duc

Pasr due upro 180 days

I'ast due l8l-365 days

a) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer crcdit risk management. 1'rade rcccivables,
which are non-interest bearing, are mainly liom stockists, distributors and customcrs and arc
generally on 30 days to 270 days credit term. Outstanding customer receivables arc regularlv
monitored. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely
distributed both economically and geographically.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
clients. ln addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups
and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. 'fhe
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets. The group does not hold collateral as security. The group evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

Sales to cerlain jurisdictions are either based on advance payments or restricted to cenain
limits to contain exDosures to credit risk.



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidatcd Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

Expected crcdit loss assessment

l'he Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (e.g. timeliness of payments, available press
information etc.) and applying experienced credit judgement,

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporling period are reviewed by the
Group to determine incurred and expected credit losses. Flistorical trcnds of impairment of
trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Civen that the macrocconomic
indicators affecting customers of the Group have not undergone any substantial change, the
Croup expects lhe historical trend of minimal credit losses to continuc. 'fhe trend of the bad
debts is negligible.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include €stimated interest payments and exclude the

MUR

Cross Carrying amount

Average [xpected loss rate

Carrying arnount oftmde receivables (net ofimpairment)

3l Morch 2025

206,1E3,664

0.004

206,183,66,1

3l March 2024

r73,246,116

0.0"/.

173,246,116

b) Financialinstrumerts
company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by
mutual funds having a credit ranking of at least 3 and above lrom cRIStL or equivalent rating
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published extemal credit
ranking. Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, thc Company adjusts its
exposure to various counterparlies.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incuning unacceptable losses. The Group's objective is to, at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. 'I'he Group
closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash .anager.nr sysrem. Ir maintains
adcquate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft riom banks at an
optimised cost. working capital requirements are adequately addressed by intemally generated
funds. Trade reccivables are kept within manageable levels.

Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt
investments at an amount in excess ofexpected cash outflows on financial liabilities over the next
six months.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect oftrade receivables during the year was as

Balance as at the beginning ofthe year

lmpairment loss rccognised (ne0

Amounts $ritten off
Balance as at the vear end

6r,Q\
a(si

impact of netting agreements.



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

tv.

MUR
As at 3l Mrrch 2025

Trade pryables
current

Lease liabilitics
'fotal

Csrrying
Amount

Contfrcturl Cash Flows

0-12 l-2
months years

2-5 More tha o 5
years years

As at 3l March
2024

Trade payables
culTenl

Lease liabilities

Total

Carrying
Amount

Contractual Cash Flows

Total 0-12
months

393,743

l-2 2-5
ycars years

More than 5

years

39J,74J 393,113

393,743 393,743 393,143

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equiqr prices - will affect the Group's income or the valul of its holdings of financial
instruments. 'lhe objective of market risk management is to manage and contriol market risk
exposues within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and bonowings, diposits, investments, and derivative
financial instruments.

Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, incruding the effects of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group uses derivative financial instrulments
such as foreign exchange contracts to manage its exposures to foreign exchange fluctuations. All
such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the risk management committee.

Currency risk
'lhe Group is exposed to currency dsk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies
in which sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated and the respective currencies of the
Group. The cunencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are IJS Dollars, Euro
and Mauritian Rupee.

The Group does not have any policy to hedge against foreign currency exposure. In respect of
other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign iurrencies, the Group's poricy is to
ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign 

"urr"n"i". 
ut

spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 3 I March 2025 and 3l M^rch 2024:

Psrticulars

Bank Balances

Trade Rcccivables

Olher Currcnt Assets

Nct Assets / (Liabititics)

3l Merch 2025

68,077,150

206,t83.664

276,422,300

573,7E9,375

31 March 2024

68,10t.027

173.246,1t6

106,416.539

491,6t,1a4



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

For the year ended 3l March 2025 and 3l March 2024, every percentage point deprcciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate between the MUR and respective currencies has affected ihe Group's
incremental profit before taxes per below:

Year
3 I March 2025

3 | Matrch 2024

Ch!nge in currency crchange rate

'5"" (-5"")

+5% / (-so/o)

Effect on profil before tAx

10,309, 183 / (10.309,r 83)

8,662,306 / (8,662,306)

30. Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilitics:

During the year, the Group has nol entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
have not been mi a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

31.

a) Interest rate risk
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate becauso of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest ratcs is - as there are no borrowings in the Group,

b) Price risk
Group does not have any exposure to price risk, as there are no equity investments by group.

Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - ,.Leases":

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease. These are generalry cancelrable and
ranges from I I months to 5 yeaxs and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions imposed by
these lease arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. Applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio ofleases with reasonably similar characteristics.

Right-of-use assets

MTJR

3l March 2025 3l Morch 2024

22,300818 23,005,522

119,755,883 71,559,315

64,126.903 78,681.279

Foreign Currency
3l March 2025 3l March 2024

45E,300 460,263

19.245.t74,862 20,84r,378,149

Foreign
CurrcDcy

EURO

USD

u7,s

Cost

Op€ning Balance

Addilions

Disposals

Cl05ing Balance

Accurhulated d€preciation rnd inpairment

Opcning Balance

Depreciation

Impairm€nt loss

Eliminated on disposals ofassels

Closing Brlance

3l March 2025

7.t75.718

(7, t 75,718)

6,593,7 44

(6,s93,744)

3l March 2024

7 .17 5.7 t8

7,175,7 t8

6,593,7 44

6,593,744



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

Breakdown of lerse expenses

Cash outflow on leas€s

Maturity analysis

Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Group.

Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relationships:
Category I - Holding Company
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)

Category II - Directors, Key Management personnel & their R€latives:
Mr. Vinayak Muzumdar Director (APML)
Mr. Suttian Deerpaul Director (ApML)
& Relatives of Kcy Management personnel

B) Following transactions were carried out with relrred brrriec.

1l

amounts 31 Mrrch 2025 31 Msrch 2024

7,175,?lt

387,983

Caoss

Net

Short-term lease expense

Low value lease expense

Totrl lerse exp€nse

3l M{rch 2025

1t,266,162

1t,266,t62

3l Mrrch 2024

1l,436,t44

I1,436"E44

31 Mrrch 2025

393,743

393,743

3l Mrrch 2024
Repayment of lease liabilities

Total crsh outflow on leases

Less than I year Over I yesrs

3l M.rch 2025

Lease liabilities

3l Mrrch 202,t

Leasc liabilities 393,743

Following transactions were carried out with related panies:

l. Purchase ofGoods:

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India

3l Mrrch 2025 3l Mlrch
2023

141,981,231 61,100,513
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem€nts for the vear ended 3l March 2025

35. Remuneration to Auditors:

The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter
government or any govemment authority.

MUR

36. Additional disclosures required by schedule III (amendments dated 24 March
2021) to the Companies Act, 2013:

A. Relationship with struck offcompany

The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under companies Act. 2013 or
Companies Acr,1956.

B. Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or preyious ycar in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196r, that has not been recorded in the books of
account.

Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks

The borrowings obtained by The Group from banks have been applied for thc purposes for which
such loans were taken.

Details of benami property h€ld

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against The Group for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of lggg) and Rules made
thereunder-

Wilful defaulter

2. Key Management Compensrtion:

Short Term Employee Benefits

Vinayak Muzumdar & Suttian Deerpaul ll 2,478,328 2,542,8t2

as on 31 March 2025
Category 3l Msrch 2025 3l Ntarch 2024

l. Trade Payablest

AjanB Pharma Ltd, India

2, Advances:

Ajanta Pharma Ltd, India 254.937.356 100,717,830

Sr. No.

a.

D.

c.

d

Particularc

Construction/ acquisition of asset

On purposes other than (a) above

Shonlall at lhe end oflhe year

Total ofprevious year shortfall

Particulnrs

Audit Fees

For Certification and Other Matters

3l March 2025

470,000

3l March 2024

t08.097

F. Compliance with numbcr of layers of

by any bank or financial instilution or



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year end€d 3l March 2025

'Ihe Croup has complied with the number oflayers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

G, Compliance with approvcd scheme(s) ofarrangements

The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on
curent or previous financial year,

H. Details ofcrypto curr€ncy or yirlual currency

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during thc currcnt or
previous year.

I. Utilisation ofborrowed funds and share premium
i. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the lntermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the lik€ to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii. 'fhc Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Group shall:

a directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b (b) provide any guarantee, securily or the like on beharf ofthe ultimate Beneficiaries.

Closure of wholly owned subsidiary:

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Intemational Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary olthe company, was removed
liom its register ofcompanies u/s 308 ofthe companies Act 2001 (Mauritius;vide iti letter dated 2z
September 2022.

Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current
period's classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended schedule III to tho
Companies Act,20l3 effective from 01 April2023.

The Group has one segment of aclivity namely ,,pharmaceuticals".

In terms of our report attached

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalfofBoard ofDirectorsof
Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

.r 7w)

37.

38.

39.

Vinayak Muzumdar
DirectorPartner

UDIN: 25l07574BMJGLL686l

Mumbai, 22 April 2025
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lndepcndent Auditor's Report
'l'o thc Membcrs of AJANTA PHAIIMA PHILIPPINES INC.

Rcport on the Standalone Financial Statcments
'l'he accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. are being audited under rhe local laws
o1'the country by the statutory auditor for the period lst lan 2024 to 3lst December 2024. 'l'he

company lollows the period lst Apil 2024 to 3lst March 2025.ln order to consolidate the
aocounts of AJAN'I'A PHARMA PHII-IPPINES INC. with that of rhe company, we have been
appointcd by thc management of the company to audit the reinstated accounls ol AJANTA
PIIAI{MA PIIILIPPINES INC. for the period lst April 2024 to 3lst March 2025 undcr thc
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (lnd AS).

Opinion
Wc have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statcments of AJAN'I'A
PIIARMA PHILIPPINES INC. ("the Company") comprising of the Standalonc Balance Shcet
as at 3lst March 2025, the Standalonc Statement of Profit and Loss (including othcr
comprchcnsive income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statcmcnt, thc Standalonc Slatcment ol
Changes in liquity for the year then ended, and a summary o[the significanl accounling policics
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone Ind AS financial
stalemcnts") prepared in accordance with group accounting policies followed by Ajanta Pharma
Ltd. 'l'hesc Standalone financial statements have been prepared solely to enablc Ajanta 1o

prcparc its consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to thc explanations givcn 1o us,
thc aforcsaid standalone financial statements givc the information required by the Act in the
manncr so rcquired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
gencrally accepled in India, ol the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025, and,
profiUloss, chonges in equityand its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Ilasis for 0pinion
We conduclod our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specificd undcr
scction 143(10) o[ the Companics Act, 2013. Our responsibilities undcr thosc Standards arc
Iurthcr described in thc Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finoncial Slolemenls
scction of our report. We are independent oI the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requiremcnls
that arc relcvant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in
accordance with these requircments and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidcncc
wc havc obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

M, NO,
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Managcment's Rcsponsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Thc Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) olthe
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone llnancial
statcments that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial perlormancc,
(changes in equity) and cash flows ofthe Company in accordance with thc accounting principles
gcnerally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specificd under section 133 of
thc Ac1. This responsibility also includes maintcnance of adequate accounting records in
accordancc with thc provisions of the Act lbr safeguarding of the assets ol thc Company and for
prcvcnting and delccting frauds and other irregularities; sclcction and applicalion of'appropriatc
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonablc and prudcnt; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were
operaling effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
rclevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that givc a true and fair
vicw and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor.

In prcparing thc financial statcmcnts, management is responsible for asscssing thc Company's
ability to continue as a going conccm, disclosing, as applicable, matters relatcd to going concem
and using the going concem basis ol accounting unless management eithcr intends to liquidatc
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

'l'hosc Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial rcporting
proccss in accordance with the group accounling policics followcd by Ajanta.

.\ u d ito r's li.esponsibilitl'

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenls as a
wholc are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurancc, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when i1 exists. Misstatements can arise from lraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
cconomic decisions of users takcn on the basis ofthese financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As rcquired by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to thc bcst of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of accounl as required by law have been kept by thc Company
so lar as it appcars from our examination ofthose books

(c) 'l'hc llalance Sheet, the Statemcnt of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Stalemcnt dcalt with

t. o.
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by this Iteport are in agreement with the books of account.

Kcy Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significancc
in our audit of the financial statements of the cunent period. These matters were addressed in the
conlcxt of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and wc do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with thc Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companics (Accounts)
Ilulcs,20l4.

(c) On the basis ofthe wrilten representations received from the directors as on 31st March,2025
taken on rccord by the Board of Directors, none of thc directors is disqualified as on 3 I st March.
2025 irom being appointed as a director in terms of Scction 164 (2) ofthc Act.

(l) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule I I ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

iii. Therc has been no delay in transferring amounts, required 1o be transferred, to the Invcstor

I'lducation and Protection Fund by the Company.

/irr G.R.Modi& Co
(' har t e r e d A c c ount qnl s

lrirm's registration number: I 12617W

a

CA Swapnil Modi
l)arlner
Mcmbership number:
Mumbai

107574

l)a1c :22nd April, 2025

til)IN NO: 251 075748MJGIM2787

M. NO
101571
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ii. 'l'hc Company has not entercd into any long-term conlracts including derivative contracts,

roquiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for matcrial loresecablc

losses; and



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Balencc Sheet
at tt 3I March 2025

(Curr€ncyrPllP)

Noie
3l Mrrch 2025

PEP
3l Mrrch 2024

}HP

Propeny, plant and equipment
Olhe. intangible ass€ts

Right to use assels

Olher financial ass€ts

Deferred irx assels (n€t)

Findncial lssets

Tmde receavsbles

Cash and clsh equivalents

Other currcnt assets

Tot l $s€ts

Equityand LirbilitieN
f,quity

Equity share capiral

Orher Equity

Lirbililier
Non currcnt lirbilities

Financialliabiliries

Lease liability

Current li!bilities
Financid liabilities

Tmde payables

Leas€ liability
O$er currenr liabilities

Tot t equity rnd
Material accounting policies

Swapril Modi

Mrmbai 22 April2(ns

trDIN NO : 25I07574B]UJGLM2?87

7

7
'7

t5,241,955 16,998,662

318,472 100,590

30,249,7' t5,568,050

7,075.610 2,466,243

Tot.l non-curre[t rlsel!
t,070,866 1,331,033

16,674 36,664,578

548,061,9f3 311,895.817

507,853,486 553,546.271

30,552,s21 60,606,352
42,719,557 28.t39.126

Totrl current a$et! 1,129,20,479 1,016,187,625

1.183,2J4,t5J t.052,852,20J

t0

ll
12

l3

t4
15

200,000,000 200.000,000

332,009,656 350.107.128
TotNl Equity

Totrl non{urrent liabilitle3

532,009,956 550,107,128

t6 13,172,t65 4,075,523

t3,t72,165

11

t8
l9

571,581,O7 |
I7,381,198

49,083,863

4,O75,523

415.599,944

10,o42,224

73,027.384
Totrl cu..ent liabilitie!

lirbilities

638,052,332 498,669,5s2

For aod on bch.lf of Borrd ot Dirccton
of Aftrt Phrrnr Philippin6 lDc.

\t=*t*-)
Rri..h l4 Agraw.l

Director
Mumbei,22 April2(D5

The nores referred ro above form an inlcgml part of rhe consoljdatcd finanoial statements

As per our rcport ofeven dale atlached

ln terms ofour reDort sttached
Fo. c. R Modi & Co.
Charte.€d Accountrl|t!



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Ststement ofPront sod Loss Account
Ior the tcar ended 31 Lhrch 2025

(Cunencyr PHP)

Income

Revenue from operations

Other income

Totrl incomc
Erpcn!,as

Purchase of stocl-in-tnde
Changos in inv€nories of fi nished goods/wotk-in-progress/stock-in-tsade
Employee benefi ts expenses

Financc costs

D€preciation & amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total erpcnses
Profil before trr

Tax expense

Current tax
Deffercd tax

Profit for the ycrr

Therc are no exceptional it€ms and discondnuing operations.
Esrnhg Per Equify Sh.re (Bsllc & Dituted) (Fsce Vrlue pHploo/_)

Marcrial accounting policies
The notes referred to above fonn an intrglal pan ofthe conmlidated financial ltatements

As per our repon ofeven dale attinch€d

ln term! ofour report.tt chcd
For G. R, Modi& Co.

Chrrterad Accountrntj

20 1,a16,227,697 t,76t,956,765

3l Mrrch 2025

PHP
3l Mrrcb 2024

PHP

2t 2.463.7t9
Itl&591,416 1,768,924,159

22 1,433,982,@4 | ,230, t 73,668
23 (174,166.036\ (40,036,524)
24 t12.920,727 98,743,187
2s (4,1.17) 1t2,648
26 9.3'18,830 6,486,5?0
27 259,592.695 304,512,932

t,64t,104,64t t,600,592d82
176,98f,173

I
41,875,674

t6t,33I,677

43.20t,t36

63.t2

For aod on behslfofBo.rd ofDir€ctoIs
ofAjenta Phrrmr Phl ppln.s Inc.

Swipril Modi
Partner

Mrmbrl,22 April 2(Ds

UDIN NO : 2510?574EMJct M2Z87

\t+-"---=')
R.jeah M. Agrarvrl

Direclor
Munb.i,22 April2025
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statement of cashflow
for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Curency: PHP)

Crsh now from op€rrting ectivities
Profit before lax
Adjusment for

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs

Expense on ehployee stock option scheme (esop)
Receivable written olT

3l Merch 2025

176,986,773

9,378,830
(4.17s)

3l Merch 2024

168,33t,677

6,486,570

712,648

c{sh flow beforerorking capital chinges
Change in working capital

Decrease / (increase) in trade receivable
Decrease / (increase) in other non curent assets
Decrease / (increase) in othercurrent assets
Decr€as€ / (increase) in invenlories
Increase / (decrease) in other current Iiabilities

45,692,785
(4,349,200)

(t 4,580,432'
(r 74. r66,036)
(t6,604,34't'

(48,601,332)

(2,809,052)

13,2s2,993
(4O,036.s24)

2,099,t67

C. Cash 
'low 

from financing activities
Repayment ofnon cunent borrowings
Repaymentoftease tiability linctuding interesr ttrereon; ,,onu,uo, ,O123',2it)

Interest paid
Drvrdend Daid Q 12'648)---- { lr0 0m Ooor ,r^oooo<?{,

Ncr c.slr rsed h tinoncins scriviries (t40Jt9,,8A ------aai ii

Crsh flow from ilvesting activities
CapiEl expenditure on property, plant and equipment including capital
Capilal expenditure on right to use asset

Net crsh used in investing activiai€s

Net increrse /(decreese) in cash end cash equiv.lents

Cash and cash equivalens as at fie b€grnning oflhe year

generated from operstions

getreriiad fmm op.rrting

as at the end of
indicates outflow

(892,335)
(2 r.489.39r)
(22,381,726)

(8s0,570)
(13. t2t,429)
(r2,s29937)

05

(1,867,046)

64,413,398

(10,023,829)

60,606,352

,,L 
The above cash Frow statement has been prepared under'rndirect Metbod' a5 set out in Accountrng standard 7 (rnd As - 7)'' Slaaement of Cash Flow,' under Section I 33 of the Companies Act 20 | 3.

2 Cash comprises cash on hand. currentaccounls and deposits with banks. cash equivalents are sholrt-rcrm balances (with an originalmalunty ofthree months or less from the date ofacquisition.t.

Vaterial accounting policies
'Ihe noles refcrred to above form an integral pan ofthe consolidated financial statements
As per our report ofeven date attached

In terms ofour r€port attrched

Agr'vel
DirectorMunbai, 22 Ap.it 2025

UDIN NO : 2s10757{BMJGLM?787

Forc. R. Modi & Co,
Chrrtercd Accountents

['or rnd on behalfofBorrd ofDirectors of

9z
tn

Mumbri,22 Aprit 2025



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. is a limited liability company incorporared and domiciled in
Philippines and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta pharma Ltd., India. The address of rts
registered office is located ar unit 710, AXA Life Bldg., 1296, Sen. Gil puyat Ave., Makati city,
Philippines.

Company is primarily involved in the business ofpharmaceurical and related activities.

The Financial statement for the year ended 3l March 2025 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and subsequently approved by Company's Board of Directors at its meetin; held on 22
April 2025.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statement ofthe Company has been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with
the recognition & measurcment principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
refened to as the'lnd AS') read with Rule 4 of the companies (tndian Accounting standards)
Rules,20l5 as amended and other relevant provisions ofthe Act and accounting princip-ies generaly
accepted in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cosr basis.
except otherwise stated.

Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2025

1. Corporate Information

4.

3.

Rounding of Amounts

Functional and Presentation Currencv:

Funclional currency ofthe Company is philippine peso (php).

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lacs.

Current / Non-Current classification

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on currenvnon-current
classification.

An asset is current when it is:
o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or. Held primarily for the purpose oftrading, or. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reponing period, oro Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:
. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, oro Held primarily for the purpose oftrading, or. Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

rt*\
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2025

' There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Terms ofa liability that could, at the option ofthe counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue ofequity instruments do not affect its classification.
All other liabilities are treated as non-current.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature ofproducts / activities ofthe Group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle
as l2 months for the purpose ofclassification of its assets and liabilities as cunent and non-cuirent.

6. SignificantAccountingPolicies

6.1 Property, plant and €quipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and are presented in the financial
statements at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment
in value such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment at the
time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costi oi day-to-day
servicing.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impon dudes,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset Io its working condition and location
for its intended use. Cost also includes any related asset retfement obligaiion (ARO) and interest
incurred during the construction period on funds borrowed to finance the construction of the
projects. Expenditures incuned after the fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to defened development cost in the
period the cost are incurred. Major repairs are capitalized as part of property and equipment only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated witi ttre items'wili flow to the Company
and the cost ofthe items can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on a staight-line basis to write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Condominium Units 20 years
Fumiture, Fixtures & Fittinss 2 years
Office Equipments 2 years
Computers 2 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate- that the carrying amount may not be recoverabre. FuIy
depreciated assets are retained in the accounts untir they a.e no ionge. in use and no furthei
depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loJs.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or when it is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from irs use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the retirement and disposal of an item of property and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
ofthe asset) is included in profit or loss in the period ofretirement or disposal.e\

i(curLreerrrrs)fr;
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

6.2 Intangible Assets

lntangible assets are initially measured at cost and are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss. These are amortized over
estimated useful life using the straight-line method. If there is an indication that there has been a
significant change in amortization rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset, the
amortization is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations.

lntangible assets are derecognized when these assets are disposed of or when no future economlc
benel'its are expecled from these assets.

6.3 Financiallnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise lo a financial asset ofone entity and a financial
liabiliry or equity instrument ofanother entity.

Financial Assets

Classification

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amonised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business modil
for managing the financial assets and tle contractuai cash flows characteristics ofthe financial asset.

Initial Recognition and M€asurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
re-corded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
ofthe financial asset.

Subs€quent Measurem€nt

For the purpose ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad calesories:. Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCD
r Financial assets at amonised cost
whcn assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value_through profit or loss (FVTpL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (nVfOCt;;

Financial Assets measured at Amortised cost (net ofany write down for impairment, ifany)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asser
give rise on specified dates to cash flows lhat are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cosi using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, ifany. The losses arising f,om impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (.,FVTOCl,,)

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business moder, wliose objective is to hold asiets for both
collecting contractuar cash flows and se ing furancial assets. Faii value movements u.","gogni;.
in the other comprehensive income.

,a. 1.- , i>\
,,1..r., .1(f\
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Not€s to the Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through prolit or Loss (.FVTPL")

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reponing date at fatr
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

Investm€nt in Equity ltrstruments

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at Fvrpl-. All other equiry
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling ofthe amounti fiom other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Investment in D€bt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCL Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVocl, is classified as at FVTpL.
Debt insmrments included within the FVTPL category arc measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement ofprofit and loss.

Derecognition of Finsncial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

lmpairment of Financirl Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Cornpany applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debi instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTpL.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net ofdirectly atfiibutable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include rade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurcment

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequintly measured at amortise; cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss whe-n the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amonised cost is calculateq
by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fee! or costs that are an integral part of

rt*\
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the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as costs in the statement ofDrofit and loss.



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when rhe obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same-lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms ofan existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liabilify and the
recognition ofa new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement ofhofit and Loss.

Derivative Financial Instrum€nt

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially r;cognised at fair vilue
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently ie-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are canied as financial assets when the fair value iJ posiiive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is nesative.

Inv€ntories

Finished products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value. cosl is arrived on weighted average baiis. The cost of Invenlories have been
computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production
overheads based on normal capacity and other related cost incunei in bringing the inventories to
their present location and conditiorr.

Net realisable value is the estimated selring price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs ofcompletion and selling exp€nses.

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for
and valued at net realisable value.

Goods in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date ofbalance sheet.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

lash a1d cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank incruding fixed
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or ress ihat are
readily convertible to known amounts of iash and whlch are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short_
tcrm deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank ovirdrafts as they are considered an
integral part ofthe group,s cash management.

Cash FIow Statements

cash flows axe reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects offansactions ofa non-cash nature, any deferrals oi accruals ofpast or future o-perating cash
recerpts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financin!' cash
flows. The cash flow fiom operating, investing and financing activities oitt" Cornpuriy ur"
segregated.
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6.7 Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign cunencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date ofthe transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign cunencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency rtems are canied at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on setflement or on restatement is
recognised in the Statement ofprofit and Loss.

6.E RevenueRecognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS ll5 (applicable from I April20lg)

U".d"^. 
1"9 AS ll5, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a

satisfied, i.e. when 'control, of the goods underlying the particuiar
transferred to the customer.

Funher, revenue ilom sale of goods is recognized based on a 5_Step Methodology which is asfollows:

Step l: Identiry the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identi$r the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Sale of Goods

The group applied lnd AS I I5 using the modified reftospective approach.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which isspecified in a contract with customer. Revenue aie net oiestimated retums and tfies colrected fromcustomers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when contror is transferred to thecustomer and it is probabl€ that consideration wilr be collected. contror ofgoods is transtenea uponthe shipment ofthe goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer.

The fiansaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreedcredit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it ishighly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

sales retum is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience,market conditions and provided for in the year oisare as reduction f.om ,evenue. The methodorogyand assumptions used to estimate retums are monitored and adjusted regularry in line with tradepractices, historical trends, past experience and projected market Jonditions.

performance obligation was
performance obligation were

Interest income
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Interest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.

Dividend income

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established.

Income from Exporl Benefits and Other Incentives

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there is reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be comDlied with. and the amounts will be received.

Employee Benefits

Short-term B€nefits - The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an

expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given
by the Company to its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short-
term compensated absences, bonuses and other non-monetary benefits.

Post-Employm€nt Benelits - The Company does not have a formal retirement benefit plan.

However, the Company is subject to the proyision of Republic Act No. 7641 (known as the
Retircment Law). This requires that in the absence of a retirement plan of agreement providing for
retirement benefits of employees in the private sector, an employee upon rcaching thc age of 60

years or more, but not beyond 65 years, who has served for at lcast five (5) years in a privatc
company, may retirc and shall be entitled to retirement pay. No actuarial computation was made

considering that there are no more than ten (10) employees who had served at least five years and

the tumover ofemployees is high.

Comp€nsated Absences - Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. Those are included in

the salaries and wages account and are recognized when availed ofby lhe employees.

Retirement and Other Long-t€rm Benefits
Retirement and other long-term benefits costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit
credit method. This method reflects services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and

incorporates assumptions conceming employees' projected salaries. The calculation of defined

benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary. When the calculation results in a

potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds fiom the plan or reductions in the future
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value ofeconomic benefits, consideration isgiven
to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Rc-measurements of the net reiirement and other long-term employee benefits liability, which
comprise actuadal gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in OCl. The Company

determines the net interest expense to measure the net retirement benefit liability (asset) on at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liabilify (asset), considering any

changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) dudng the period as a result of contributions and

benefit payments. Net interest expense and ot}er expenses related to defined benefit plans are

recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in protit or
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loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement ofa defined benefit plan when the
settlement occus.

The net retirement and olher long-term benefits liability recognized by the Company is the aggregate
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plan ass€ts out of
which the obligations are to be settled directly. The present value ofthe defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest rates of
govemment bonds that haye terms to maturity approximating the terms ofthe related retirement and
other long-term benefi ts liability.

Share-based compensation
Company has no share-based compensation plan.

6.10 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs comprise interest expense on bonowings and other bank charges. Borrowing costs

dirertly attributable to the acquisition, consfruction or production of an ass€t that necessarily takes a
substantial period oftime to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part ofthe cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs

consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borowing of funds.
Bonowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

bonowing costs. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as financial expenses

over the term ofborrowing.

6.l l Lease

The company's lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Company

assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
Iease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (l) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits fiom use of the asset through
the period ofthe lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use ofthe asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ('ROU")
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases

with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a

straightJine basis over the term ofthe lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the

lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably cenain that

they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the

lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the

lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the

shorter ofthe lease term and useful life ofthe underlying asset. Right ofuse assets are evaluated for

recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounls

may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the

hisher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset

@\;\| >"/ \-n!
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basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. ln such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CCU) to
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease

pa)ments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease

liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment ifwhether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the

terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessec, the

contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For opcrating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of thc
relevant lease,

Transition
Effective I April, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applied the standard to all

lease contracts existing on I April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the

cumulative adjustment to retained eamings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the

Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the

generally accepted interest rate and the right ofuse asset al its carrying amount as ifthe standard had

been applied sinie the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted

interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 3l March,

2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the

accounting policies included as part of our Annual Repon for year ended 3l March, 2019.

On transition, the adoption ofthe new standard resulted in recognition of'Right of Use' asset of PHP

2,'162,968 and a lease liabiliry of PHP 2,881,829. The cumulative effect of applying the standard,

amounting to PHP I 18,861 was debited to retained eamings, net of taxes. The effect ofthis adoption

is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and eamings per share. lnd AS I l6 will
result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from

financing activities on account oflease payments.

The following is the summary ofpractical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic

environment with a sinilar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less

than 12 months oflease term on the date ofinitial application.

Excluded the initial dfuect costs from the measurement ofthe right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.

Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases

under Ind AS 17.

The interest rate aDDlied to lease liabilities as at I April, 2019 is 6%.
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6.12 Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period Fesented.

6.13 lncome Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

Incom€ tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statem€nt ofprofit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for cuffent and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates

' and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Defened income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases ofassets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that I is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country's tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be

recovered or settled. The effect ofchanges in tax rates on d€fened income tax assets and liabilities is

recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can

be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a nct
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed eamings of subsidiaries where it is

expected that the earnings ofthe subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

6.14 Dividends to Shar€holdcrs

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board ofDirectors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.
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6.15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Conting€nt Assets and Commitments

General
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect ofwhich a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at thc
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adiusted to reflect the current
best estimates,

Ifthere is any expectation that some or all ofthe provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement rs

recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.

Ifthe effect ofthe time value ofmoney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in th€ case of:
. A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow ofresources

will be required to settle the obligation;
. A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;
. A possible obligation arising fiom past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is

remote.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets

are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where thc

Company has a binding obligation at the end of th€ lease period to restore the leased premises in a

condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied arc

added to or deducted ftom the cost ofthe asset.

6.16 Fair value mcasuremcnt

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet

date in accordance with Ind AS I 13.
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Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:
r Derivative financial instruments are measured al fair value received from Bank.
. Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).
. Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liabilify in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market pafticipants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement ofa non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to gcnerate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
panicipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use ofunobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fuir value measurement as a whole:
. Level I Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.
o Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

valuc measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
. Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the hnancial statements on a recurring basis, the

Company determines whether transfers have occuned befween levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis ofthe nature, characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

6,17 Recentaccountingpronounccments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existins
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from I April 2023.

6.18 Critical accounting j udgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about thesc assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that requirc a material
adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe assets or liabilities in future periods.
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(c)

(a)

(b)

Arrangement containing Iease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment ofan arrangement that contains a lease,
Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis oftheir relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangemcnts that such contracts are in the natue ofoperating leascs.

Multiple element contracts with v€ndors
The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods
and rendering of sewices. The consideration paid iVmay be determined independent of the
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are
accounled for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as lntangible assets, since the
Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current
treatmcnt rcprescnts the substancc ofthe arrangement.

Property, Plant and equipment
Determination ofthe estimated useful life oftangible assets and the assessment as to which
components ofthe cost may be capitalized. Useful life oftangible assets is based on thc life
ofuseful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPS ofthe respective count es. Assumptions also
necd to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitaliscd and

which components ofthe cost ofthe asset may be capitalised.

Intangibl€ Assets
Intemal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of lntangible assets.

Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

Recognition and measurement ofdefined benefit obligations
The obligation arising fiom the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of acluarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation

and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determincd with
reference to market yields at the end ofthe reporting period on the govemment bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-

employment benefi t obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the cxtent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The managemenl assum€s that taxable profits will be

available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxcs and

deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company rcviews aI cach balance sheet datc the
carrying amount of defened tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business

and complexity of existing contractual agreements,

(d)

(e)

(f)

a"
.1 

1

relationships and the long-term
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differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or futurc changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustmenls to tax income and expense alrcady
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences ofaudits by the tax authorities ofthe respective countries in which it operates.

The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

Deferred tar assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the cxtent that it is probable

that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can

be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning shategies and rec€nt business performances and developments.

G) Recognition and measurement ofother provisions
The recognition and measurement of other provisions arc based on the assessmcnt of thc
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at

the balance sheet date. The actual outflow ofresoutces at a futurc date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

(h) Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,

in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possiblc to
predict the outcome ofpending matters with accuracy.

(l) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by

appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual ftade receivables are

written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on thc

expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the cxpected

life ofthe financial assets.

The impairment provisions for hnancial assets are based on assumption about risk of default

and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to

the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as

forward looking estimates at the end ofeach reporling period.

CI) Insurance claims
lnsurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty ofrecovery.

(k) Impairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ('CGIJ')
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is thc higher of its fair value less costs

to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. ln calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are rcquired to be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of growth in

EBITDA, long term groMh rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks

involved.
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(Cudency: PHP)

Oth.i Non-Cufierl Finsocirl &s.t.
(Un*ce4 Co6id.rcd Good unlcss othcrwis. sated)

D.f.r.d Tr! Airlt! (N€i)

(Unrecur.d, Consid.r€d Good unlcss oth.$is. stated)

C{sh r.d cNh equiv .rt3

Balua with Bdks - In cmnt accounir

Advancc! 10 Supplicrs
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!l Mt i 2025

PIIP

548,061,913

548,{t6lpr3

I0,292

30,572,231

305E2,523

40,687,576

42Jt9551

1.331,033

l,l3l,0rl

373,895,8??

t7J,E95,877

3l M.rch 2024

PHP

10.004

60,576,348

25,|3,719
1,025,147

28,tt9,126

l4 liquilySh.rcC.pital

Equity Shn€s ofPHP 100 each

Issued, Subscribed & Pdd up !
Equity Shnes of PHP 100 each fitlly paid up

!l Mrrcn 2025 3l M!.ch 2025 Jl M.rch 2024 3l M.rch 202.1

Nlnbero, Nlmberof
Silre PIIP Sn.rs PHP

2.0@,000 200,0@,000 ?.000,000 200,000,000

2.000_000 200.000.000 2,q1o,000 200,0@,000

(.) Reconcili.rion ofnumber ofequity.h...r ou&trnding.t tft. b.gintring.nd.r th€ eld of th!l!!I
31 M.rch 20il5 3l Mrrch 2025

Sh.r6 PtlP
Nunber ofrhares ou$hndins is al the beginning ofthc ycai

Add Nunber ofsh$.s allottcd G bonus durins th€ y.or
Les: Nmbd of shdcs bought bek duing th. yed
Nunbfi of shes ouBlanding !r tt thc cnd of the ycu

(b)RighB, p.eferencd.od rstri.tionr tich.d to rhrrd
Th€ complny ha issu.d only on. clss of ordin!ry shm3 with votin8 ddls hNing ! pa. vd!. of PHP l0O p.r shre.
Durins rhcyearended 3l M.rch 2020. anounl ptr shdc ofdividendr.cognised as disbibltionr to equity sh.Gholdrs wrs PHP 62.50 per€quity share

(l I March 20 l9 PH P 60.60 pe! cqlity she)
Ir the clctrt of liquid.don oflh. compdy, thc holdeE of.quily sh!r$ will bc otitl.d to reiv. m.ining r$€t5 of thc conpdy. Thc distribliion will
be in proponion to thc nMb€n of cquity shrrcs held by shltcholdcrs.

(c ) Deuih ofcquity lh.rehold.r! holding hor. rhln 5%

Ajanr. Phamr Lrd.. India

(d) Shtr$ r.i.ryed for issue urder oprion3

l! Mlrch 2024 3l Mrrch 2024

Sltire PHP

2,000,000 200,000,000 2,000,000 200,000,000

2,0{0,000 200,00{,0{x} t,0o0,000 200,000,000

ll it.rch 2025 .]l Jl Mrrch 202.rll Mrrct 2025

% Holdin

Mrch 2024

% Holdire
2,000,000
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Notes to the Financirl Strtcm€llts (Coltinucd)
os at 3l lelarch 2025

(currlltcy: PHP)

OTFER f,OUITY

Bd$cc rt bc beginning ofrfu yc|r
Add : Trindencd tom Sktencnt ofProfit & lj$

Et.hr!8. Flucror.ion R*fl .

Surph. h altc Sa!.n.ot of P.sflt .trd Los
Bd.ncc |t thc bcgindlg of dr. yla

L.$: Appropri.tjons
-Divid6d Prid oi E$iry shrls
-Dividcod Drtibution Tu ft Propolcd
-TnnsfeEcd from Et&incd c.nings
-Tr lfered to GrDcnl Rc.crv.

B.hncc .l thc y.|r cnd
Torrl orher Equity

la* llibili.y
Lng T6m

Tnde Pry.bl..
Tndc Pry le! to tuhted Pnry

tar.llrblllty

(Xhcrcorrc Lirbllilie.

R.vmlc |rom Op.rrtioD!

OTHER TNCOME

Exchrns€ Dfr.r.'c. (N.t)
Prolit on Sale ofFix.d Assets

Milr.llrmous lrcom.

3l M.r.t 2025

PHP

3X,591.923

Jr,69+93

f,l Mrrct 2024

PHP

33,691.923

33694,923

3&,161,022

lz6,24a,7sa

r69,999J?J

ll5rl2,205
l50rlfr/,12E

l6

316,412,m5

131,902.528

t50,000,000

290Jta.733
1t,00r655

13,172,155

tl,lz,l65

571,587,071

5715E7,07!

t?,381,398
rTrErJ9E

49pE3,E63

49,63r.(,

IE

l9
( r )______ll9?119_

73,t273t1

to2,tt2

---w-2A63Jrg

93,153

6,t74.211

6,967)94

22 Purch.r. of Stock-in-TEd. r/3i',9E2,6Or r,2!0, | ?JI6E



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Notes to the trin.ncirl St4tcmerlts (Continu.d)

(Clrreocy: PHP)

Dcprccialion of Tangibl. Airck (Ref.r not 4)

Ch.trgd in lnvcrloric. of Firi.t.d Goodr, Work-ln-progr.*r md Sto.k-ir-Tird.
Inv.ntoriar rt the etrd ofrh. y6r :

Invcntorid ra the b.ginrirg .f th. y.r' :

Etr cl offord$ e!ch.rg. ttrul.tion

T0bl .b ts in ln!.ntorl.. of Finirh.d G@r!., Work-in-progr... .trd Sloct-in-Tndc :

Tolll ch.n8c In lNertorid of Fi.irh.d G@d3, Work-ir-p.ogr6! rnd Stoctin-Tnd.

o|npolyc l.n.fia f,rpen.r
S.ldies, Wtgcs, Bonu! and Auoeanc.!
StrfiWelfu! ErpeN.s

(A)

(B)

3l M$.h 2025

PEP

548,06t,9t3

548,06t.9 t3

44,613,7n
159,895,552

20,350,444

655,100

3,5 ,209
1,305,341

174,126

13,874,755

239592,594

Jl M.rch 2024

PHP

38,495,E71

J73,895,E77

331.859,3J2

(c)

( t?4, | 66,036)

(B)-(A)+(C) ( | 74,r 540!5)
|,259,816,J68

u2.366,056
554,671

(4,177)

_________3:!14

9,37E,830

9,178,130

(40,036.524)

(.{0,0J6,524)

I,190,13?,t44

98.5t2,?51

230,437
q,74a,la7

S.llins Erp.rs.s
cldirs dd FoMdinr
Tnvelling Expa$es

Tllcphmq T.lcr & PGllgc
Rcplis lo Building

Exchanse Dficr€nce (N€t)

MisccUaco$ Expers3

6,4E6,5?0

5,4E6,5?0

t05,E93,0?E

t13.974.553

t8,510,378

76t,462

3347.75E
t,347,$5

t74,4tO
t2.697.t25
l?,?66,585

304.5129t2



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

28. Capital Management
Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development ofthe business. Management monitors the retum (EBIT)
on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. The Company's objective for
capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and suppon the
growth of the company. The company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating
plans and long term and other strategic investment plans.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as debt less cash and cash equivalents and short-term inyestments.
Adjusted equity comprises all components ofequity.

Company's policy is to keep the ratio below L00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March
2025 was as follows. PHP

Pa iculars

Debt

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents

Net Debt

Equity

Net Debt to Equity rrtio
B

NB

31 Mrrch 2025

17,381,398

10,582.523

( 13,201, | 2s)

s32.009,6s6

-0.02

3l Mrrch 2024

10,42.224

60.606,352

(s0.564,128)

550,107,128

-0.09

29. Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Earnines Per Share:

Employee Benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits',the Company offers its employees: Shoft-term
employee benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other govemment contributions
which are due within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renden the
related scrvice. The total consideration paid in 2023-24 was PHP 112.920,727 (Previous Year PHP
98,743,t87).

Retiremcnt plan -'fhe Company did not yet set up a retirement plan since it does not have more than
ten ( l0) employees who had served at least five yeaxs. Retirement expenses are recognized upon actual
availingof qualificd employees which will be determined by the Company based on the actual number

Bosic end Diluted Eernings Per Shrre:

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS
(PHP)
Add: Dilutive effect on profit (PHP)

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders for computing
Dilured EPS (PHP)
Weighted Average Number ofDquity Shares outstanding -
for Basic EPS
Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number of
Equity Shares
Weight€d Av€rage Number of Equity Shares for Diluted
EPS

Fac€ Value p€r Equity Share (PHP)

Bssic Earnings Per Shsre (PIIP)

Diluted Errnings Per Shsres (PHP)

B

C=A-B

D

E

F=DrE

A/D

c/F

3l Msrch 2025

131,902.528

t26.248.758

2,000,000

2,000,000

100

65.95

6s.95

3l March 2024

t26,248;7 s8

126.248.758

2,000,000

2,000,000

t00

63.t2

63.12

30.



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 3l March 2025

31. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management

Fair value measurements PHP

Fair value measurement oflease liabilities is not required.

Level I -The hierarchy in level I includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like Mark to
Market derivative and Non-convertible Debentures) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use ofobservable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value as instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the signihcant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:
. Credit risk
. Liquidity risk
o Market risk
o Cunency risk

Risk manage ment framework
Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company's risk management policies, under the guidance ofAudit Committee.

Company's risk management policies are established to identi! and analyse the risks faced by it, to set

appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. Company, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and
constructive conkol environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

31 Mrrch 2025

Amortis€d Cost

3l March 2024

FVTPL Amortised CostFinrncill Instruments by crtegory

Financirl Assets

Trade Receivables

Oth€I Non-Current Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Financial Assets

Finrnci.l Liabilities

Non-Cunent Leas€ Liability
Olher Current Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables

Totrl Financial Liobilities

507,853,486

7,075,610

30,582.523

s4s,5l1,620

13,172,165

66,465,261

57 | ,5E7 ,07 \

651,224496

553,546.27 |

2,466,243

60,606,352

6t6,61E,E66

4,015,523

E3.069607

4t5,595,944

502.745,075



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for th€ year ended 3l March 2025

Company's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company,s
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its
oversight role by intemal audit. Intemal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results ofwhich are reported to the audit committee.

i. Credit risk
Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with its
approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal to the
carrying amount ofthese financial instruments. Customers are subject to stringent financial, credit
and legal verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis to ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

lmpairment:
The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss

for trade receivables: PHP
3l Mrrch 2025

Carryiog amount Weighacd rverrge loss rst€ Loss rllowance

Not du€

Past due uplo 180 days

385,065,695

122,781.792

0%

oo/d

507,853,4E6

3l Merch 2024

Cerrying amount Weighted averag€ loss rate Loss ollowancc

Not due

Past due upto 180 days

396,463,t60

157,083,11I

ss3,s46r7l

00/o

0%

a) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Croup's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables,
which are non-interest bearing, are mainly fiom stockists, distributors and customers and are
generally on 90 days credit term. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.
The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed
both economically and geographically.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
clients. ln addition, a large number of minor receivables are groupcd into homogenous groups
and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data, 'fhc

maximum exposwe to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets. The group does not hold collateral as security. The group evaluatcs the
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

Sales to certain jurisdictions are either based on advance payments or restricted to certain
limits to contain exDosures to credit risk.



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Expected credit loss assessment

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (e.g. timeliness of payments, available press
information etc.) and applying experienced credit judgement.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the
Group to determine incurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of
trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macroeconomic
indicators affecting customers of the Group have not undergone any substantial change, the
Group expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. The trend of the bad
debts is negligible.

PHP

Gross Cafiying anount

Average Expected loss rate

Carrying amount oftrade receivables (ne1 of impairment)

3l M.rch 2025

507,t53,4E6

0.00%

3 I March 2024

553,546,271

0.00%

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect oftrade receivables during the year was as

follows: PHP

Jl March 2025 3l March 2024

Balance as at the beginning ofthe yea!

Impairment loss recognised (net)

Amounis written ofT

Balance as at the year end

b) Financialinstruments
Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by
mutual funds having a credit ranking of atleast 3 and above from CRISIL or equivalent rating
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published extemal credit
ranking. Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its
exposule to vanous counterpartles.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and futule cash and

collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It
maintains adequate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banks at
an optimised cost. Working capital requirements are adequately addressed by intemally generated
funds. Trade receivables are kept within manageable levels.

The company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly
marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of exDected cash outflows on financial
Iiabilities over the next six months.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the
impact of netting agreements,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

As at 3l March 2024

Trade payables

Other Financial
liabilities

Leasc liabilities

Total

Canying
Amount

415,599,944

73,027,384

4,075,523

Contractual Cash Flows

Total 0-12 l-2 years 2-S More thar 5

years yearsmonths

4t5,599,944 4t5,599,944

13,027,384 73,027,384

4,075,523 t0,042,224 4,075,523

502,745,07s 502,745.075 498,669,552 4,015,523

lv.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, intercst mtes
and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and bonowings, deposits, investments, and derivative
financial instruments.

Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The company uses derivative financial
insfuments such as foreign exchang€ contracts to manage its exposures to foreign exchange
fluctuations All such transactions are canied out within the guidelines set by the risk management
committee.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proponion of
financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of
movements in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations,
provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities.The sensitivity of the relevant income
statement item is the effect ofthe assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on
the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of3l Merch 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Currency risk
The Company's foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Philippine peso

against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The Company's transactional curency exposures arise from its inventories which is 100%
purchases liom Holding Company in US dollar. In addition, 32o as al3l March 2025 and 32yo as

at 3l March 2024 ofthe Company's debt are denominated in US dollar. The Company periodically
reviews the trend of the foreign exchange rates and, as a practical move, increases its US dollar
denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine peso is depreciating or decreascs its US

PHP

As at3l March 2025

Trade pryrbles

Oth€r Finencirl
liabilities

Leese liabilitics

Total

Csrrying
Amount

571,5t7,071

49,083,863

30,553,563

651,224,497

ContractuolCrsh Flows

Total 0-12
nooths

41559984{ 415,599,944

49,083,863 49,083,863

30,553,563 t7,3tlJ98

651,224A91 638,0s2J32

f-2 years 2-S ltore than 5
ycsrs years

13,172,t6s

13,172,t65



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
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The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 3 I March 2025 and 31 March2024:

For the year ended 3l March 2025 and 3l March 2024,
appreciation in the exchange rate between the PHPand
Company's incremental profit before taxas per below:

every percentage point depreciation /
resDective currencies has affected the

32. Note on foreign currcncy exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
currcncy exposures that have not been mitieated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

PHP
Y€er

31Much2025

31 March 2024

Change in currency exchrnge rate

+5o/o / (_5%)

+5o/. / (-5o/.)

EfTect on profit before tsx

28,857,456 / (28,857 ,456)

20,940,67 6 / (20,940,67 6)

PHP
Particulars 31 March

2025
Amount

31 March
2024

418,8t3,456

Foreign Currency
3l March 3l March

2025 2024

Foreign
Currency

577,t49,t t8 10,125,273 7,497 ,t50 USD

a) Interest ratc risk
The Company's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-
tcrm debt obligations. Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to fair value interest rate
risk. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates, with all other variable held constant, ofthe Company's profit before income
tax. The estimates are based on the outstanding interest-bearing liabilities of the Company
with floatins interest rate as at 31 March 2025 and 3l March 2024.

b) Price risk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there are no equity investments.

Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - "Leascs":

The Croup have taken various premises under operating lease. These are generally cancellable and
ranges from I I months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Some ofthese lease agreements have price escalation clauses, There are no rcstrictions imposcd by
these lease arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. Applied a single
discount rate to a Dortfolio of leases with reasonablv similar characteristics.

33.

PHP
Particulrrs

Financial Assets

Tradc Payables

Borrowings & Othcr Financial Liabilitics

N€t Assets / (Lisbilities)

3l MNrch 2025

(571,587,071)

(s,s62,047)

(s77,149,1rE)

3l March 2024

(415.599.944)

(3,2t3,5t2)

(4r8,8r3.456)

PHP
Year

3l March 2025
3l March 2024

Change in int€r€st rate
+t% / (-1%)

Effect on profit before tax
t73,814 / (173,814)
t00.422 / ( r+lYo I GIYI



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

Breakdown of lease expenses

Mrturity analysis

Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

There are no contingent liabilities and commifinents by the Company.

Right-of-use assets

Cost

Opening Balance

Additions

Disposals

Closing Bahnce

Accumulrted deprccirtion rnd imprirment

Opening Balanct

Depleciation

Impairment loss

Eliminated on dist'osals of assets

Closing Brhnce

3l Mrrch 2025

20,425,460

zt,489,391

41,914,851

4,85?,410

6,807,670

3l M.rch 2024

t0,745,558

13,tzt,429

(3,441,527\

20,425,460

4,344.256

3,527,232

(3,0r4,077)

4,857,41011,665,080

Crrrying rmounlj

Gross

Net

3l M.rch 2025

41,914,E5r

30,249,171

fl Mrrch 2024

2042s,460

15,568,050

Short-term l€ase expense

Low value lease expense

Totol l€rse erpansc

3l M.rch 2025

3,511,209

3,5r 1,209

3l Merch 2024

3,387,758

3J87,758

Cash outllow on leases

(Repayment) / Addition ofleas€ liabilities

Totol cesh outflow on lerses

3l March 2025

9,906,641

9,906,641

3l Mrrch 202C

160,211

160,211

Less tban I yesr Over I years

3l Msrch 2025

Lease liabilities

3l March 2024

Lease liabilities

17,38t,398

10,042,224

13,r72,165

4,075,523



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
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35. Related parfy disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) R€lationships:
Category I - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)

Category ll - Dircctors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Sam Gioskos Director (APPI)
& Relatives ofKey Management Personnel

B) Following transactions w€re carried oul with related parties:
Sr. No, Particulars Category 3l March 2025 3l March 2024

l. Purchase ofGoods:
Ajanta Phama Ltd,, lndia | 1,433,982,604 1,230,173,668

2. Key Managem€nt Compensation:
Short Term Employee Benefits
Sam Gioskos ll 9,120,000 17,000,000

3. Dividend Paid to Ajanta Pharma 150,000,000 169,999,575
Ltd., India I

36. Remuneration to Auditors: PHP
Particulars
Audit Fees

3l March 2025 3l March 2024
249

Additional disclosures required by Schedule III (amendments dated 24 March
2021\ to the Companies Act, 2013:

A. Relationship with struck off company

'fhe Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or
Companies Act,l956.

B. Undisclosed income

There is no income sunendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961. that has not been recorded in the books of
account.

C. Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks

The bonowings obtained by The Group from banks have been applied for the purposes for which
such loans were taken.

D. Details of b€nami prop€rty held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against The Croup for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made

thereunder.

PHP

Jt,

as on 3l March 2025
Sr. No. Particulars Cat€gory 3l March 2025 3l March 2024

l. Trade Payable:
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India I 571,58'7,07 | 415,599,944
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E. Wilful defaulter

The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
govemment or any government authority.

F. Compliance with number of lsyers of companies

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

G. Compliance with approved scheme(s) ofarrang€ments

The Group has not entered into any schone of arrangement which has an accounting impact on
current or previous financial year.

H. Details of crypto currency or vittual currency

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or vinual currency during the curent or
previous year.

I. Utilisttion of borrowed funds and share premlum
i. The Croup has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the lntermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii. The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or enrity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Group shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

38. Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current
period's classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule III to the
Companies Act,2013 effective from 0l April2023.

39. The Company has one segment of activity nrmely ..ph|rmoceuticals".

In terms ofour report attrched

For G. R Modi & Co,
Chanered Accountants

For and on behalf ofBoard ofDirectorsof
Ajants Phrrma Phillppines Inc.

(rcAr FRry_Lq6l7w)

}.o-**''J
Rajesh M. Agrawal
Director

Swapnil Modi
Partner

Mumbai, 22 April 2025
UDIN NO: 25107 57 4BMJG LI|27E7
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lleport on thc Standalone Financial Statcments
'l hc accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA I-l'D. are being audited under thc local laws ol
thc country by the statutory auditor for the period lst Jan 2024 to 31st December 2024. 'l'he

company lollows the period lst Apil 2024 to 3lst March 2025. In order to consolidalc thc
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERTA LTD. With that of the company, we have bccn
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJAN'I'A
PIIARMA NIGERIA LTD. lor the period 1st April 2024 to 3lst March 2025 under the
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (lnd AS).

Opinion
Wc have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements ol AJANI'A
PIIARMA NIGERIA LTD. ("the Company") comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at
3lst March 2025, the Standalone Statement ol Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary ol the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafler refened to as "the

slandalone Ind AS financial statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting policies
lbllowcd by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Standalonc financial statcmcnts havc bccn prcparcd
solcly to enablc Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its financial statemcnts.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principlcs
gcnerally accepted in India, of the state o1'affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025, and
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
Wc conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) spccificd undcr
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the l"inancial Stalemenls

scclion ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the Code of Dthics
issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requiremcnts
thal arc relevant to our audit of the financial statemenls under the provisions of the Companics
Act,20l3 and the Rulcs thereunder, and rve have fullilled our othcr ethical rcsponsibilitics in
accordance with these requirements and the Code o[ Ethics. We bclievc that thc audit cvidcncc

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis lbr our opinion.

M. NO.
107574
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Independent Auditor's Report
'l'o the Members of Ajanta Pharma Nigcria Ltd.



In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going conccm
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management eithcr intends to liquidatc
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

'['hosc I]oard of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Rcsponsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
wholc are licc from material misstatcment, whethcr duc to lraud or crror, and to issuc an
auditor's repo( that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurancc, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always dctecl a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influencc the
cconomic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As rcquired by Section 143(3) olthe Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the bcst of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

M. NO,
'1o7571
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Kcv Audit Mattcrs
Kcy audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, wcre of most significance
in our audil of the financial statements of the current period. These malters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management's Responsibility for the Standaloni Ind AS Financial Statements
'l'he Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Ac1, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statcmcnts that give a true and fair view of the financial posilion, financial performancc. and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Ac1. Ihis
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets ol the Company and for prcventing and
detecling frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriatc accounting
policics; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudcnt; and dcsign.
implcmentation and maintenance of adcquate intemal financial controls, that wcre opcrating
cltcclivcly for cnsuring the accuracy and complcteness ofthe accounting rccords, rclevant to thc
preparation and presentation ofthe hnancial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books

(c) Thc Balance Sheet, the Statement ofProfit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified undcr Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 olthc Companics (Accounls)
l{ules. 2014.

(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on 3 I st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 I st March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act.

(l) Wilh respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
I{ule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,20l4, in our opinion and to the bcst ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. 'l-he Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,

requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeablc

losses: and

/br G.R.Modi& Co
Charlered Accountants
["irm's n number: 112617W

CA Swapnil Modi
Parlner
Membcrship number: 107574
Mumbai
Dalc:22nd April 2025

UDIN No.: 25107 57 4BMJGLN2764

M. NO.
107574

Ot

**

iii. l'hcre has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferrcd, to thc lnvestor

I'lducation and Protection Fund by the Company.



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Balance Sheet
$ al 3 I Mirch 2025

(Currencyt NGN)

Nol-corftnt a$cls

hop€rty, plant and equipment
Right to use assets

Cuftcnl r3sctj
Fin.tlcialassets

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Totrl non{urrcnl ass€ts

3l M.rch 20Ni 3l March 2(n4

3.230jU
3,230,584

Nota

Totrl rset3

8 7,363,033
Totrl currant rtsets ?.16i.013 16,560,649

_________-_____ q___J2t2J2u

9 60.000,000 60,000.000
l0 (80,320,490) (80,388,8s7)

Tot lequiry (20.320.4$) 120,388.8571

Equity snd Liibillti€s
Equity

Equity shafe capital

Oth€r Equity

Liabilili€s
Non currcnt liabilitic.

l-ea$ liabilily

C!rrenl lisbilities
Other cunent lbbilities

Tolif c|rrrcnt lirbiliti.s 27.683.524

-

12 27,6a3,524

ru6J'0J3

3,230,585

36,949,506

36,949,506

Totrt Equity rnd Liabilittc.
Material accounting policies

The notes referred to above folm an integml p6n ofthe consolidat€d financial stnllments

As perour rcport ofeven date attached

fn terms of our report rllrched

0.90

For c. & Modi & Co.
Chartcred Accountrnta

For rnd or behrlfof Borrd of Dircctors
ofAjrnt. Pll]rmr Nigcrir Ltd.

Sw.pnil Modi

Munboi,22 April2025

UDIN NO, I 2sl 07574BMJGLN2?64

Grl|rrng Shrh
Dircctor

Mumbri,22 April2025

06478sJ5:

1e



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Strtemcnt of Profit rrd Loss Account
fo, the Wr ended 3 I March 2025

(Currency: NGI.I)

I||come
Revenue frcm operadons

Otherincorne

Total iocoma
Erp.nsca
Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in lnventorica of finish€d goods/wo*-in-progr6sJsiock-in-tnde

Employe€ benefils expens€s

Finance cosls

Deprecialion & amonisation expense

3l Mrrch 2024

NN

f3 
- 

,ro)r,
t4 293,7't9 248,299

f5 3,230,58s 4,613,035

t6 (3,592,730'
(66,366) 460,4s8

(,160,458)

lf of Bo.rd of Directoru

t. Phrrma Nig€rh Ltd.

I /tl
,V Gaurrng Shrh

L,lreator

Mumb.i 22 April 2025

31 Mrrch 2025

NN

Olber expenses

Pmfit bafora trr
Tax expense

Current tax

Deffcrcd tax

Profit for tha y€it

Toul €rpcnaaa
6t,355

6q366 (460,458)

(0.0r )
There are no exceptional items and discontinuiog operalions.

E.rning Per Equity Sh.r€ (Bttic & Dilutcd) (F.cc vtlu.NN l/-) (ln R!.)

Material accouoling policies

The notes refer.ed to atiove form an integal pan ofthe consolidaled {inancial stateme[ls

As p€r our raport ofev€n date atlached

In trrms ofour rcport atttched

0.m

For.nd on behlf
ofAJrnt.

Mumbri, 22 April 2025

UDIN NO. | 2510?574BMJGLN2764

For G. R. Modi & Co.

Chartarrd Accouoont!
(ICAIFRN:ll?9 ffi
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Statement ofcashflow
.for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Currency: NGN)

A. Cssh llow fiom op€rrting rctivities
Profit beforc tax
Adjuslment for

Depr€ciation & amortisation expense

lnlerest exp€nse

3l Mrrcb 2025

dry
3l Mrrch 2024

68,366 (460,458)

3,210,58s 4,613,01s

293,7',t9 248,299

Unrealised foreign exchonge difference - - -

Ope"Nt'-C profit befo"c 
"orkttrg 

crpltrl " 
e

Changes in working capital
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivable

Decrease /(increase) in olher current assets

Decrease / (increase) in inventories

Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities

NGt cash |rsed io inv€sting ,ctivities

Net increase / (dccrerse) is crsh rtrd crsb cquival.rts

LASn

Cash

and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
7

lncrease / (decrease) in trade payables i - ::::::--rstt g"tr"."tco fro. op."rtions (5'673'253) 1t347580

Net income tax paid - . - .- :--
Net ca.t ft"" g-e,te"rt.d f"ot opereting eitivitiis (5'673'253) 18J47,580

B. Cash flow from inv€sting rctivities
Purchase offixed assets-including intangible assets & cwip

Capital expenditure on right to use asset ' (1,876 702)

Prcceeds from sale of fixed assels
- (3,876,?02)

C. Crsh flow from fio{trcing rctrvities
lnterest parcl Q93,779) (248'299')

Repaym;nr of lease I iability ( including interest thereon) (3,210,: qq) 
. -(?lq'l:q)

@ (3'524'36{) (1,194'os4)

(9,19?,616) 13,216823

16,s60,649 3,283,826

as al

in bmckeE outflou.

I Thc above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under'lndirecl M€thod' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (lnd AS _ 7)

"stalement ofCash Flow" under Seclion 133 oflhe Compani€s Act 2013

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, cuffenl accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are sholn_lerm balances (wilh an

original maturily ofthree months or less from the date ofacquisition)

Malerial accounling policies

The notes referred to above form an integral pan of the consolidated financial statements

As Der our reDon ofeven date attached

In terms ofour r€port rttrched
For G. R. Modi & Co.

Chrrtered Accountent5

For rnd on bahatfofBoard ofDircctors of
Ajanta Pharm{ Nige ris Lld.

Mumbri,22 April2025
IJDIN NO. ; 251O?S?{BMJGLN2?64

Mrmb.i,22 April 2025



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to th€ Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

1. Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Nigeria and

is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia. The address of its registered office is
located at Plot 421, Cherry Zone, Omofade Crescent, Omole, Phase l, Ikeja, Lagos, Nigeria.

The Company is primarily involved in the business ofpharmaceutical and related activities.

The Financial statement for the year ended 3l March 2025 have been reviewed by the Audit

Committee and subsequently approved by Company's Board of Directols at it's meeting hcld on 22

April2025.

Basis of preparation

The Financial statement of the company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance

with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards

(hereinafter refined to as the .Ind AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (lndian Accounting

itundurdt) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting

principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,

except otherwise stated.

Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional currency ofthe Company is Nigerian Naira (NGN).

Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the hnancial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest

crores.

Current / non-current classification:

The asscts and liabilities in the balance sheet ale presented based on currenvnon-current

classification.

An asset is current when it is:
. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

o Held primarily for the purpose oftrading, or
. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Caih or cash equivalent unless restricted fiom being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A liability is current when it is:
. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
. Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

)

3.

4,

5.



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

6.

6.1

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period. Terms ofa liability that could, at the option ofthe counterparty, result

in its settlement by the issue ofequity insffuments do not affect its classification.
All other liabilities are treated as Non-Cunent.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature ofproducts / activities ofthe company and the normal time between acquisition
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating

cycle as 12 months for the purpose ofclassification of its assets and liabilities as cunent and non-

curTent.

Signifi cant Accounting Policies

Properiy, plant and €quipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the

cost ofthe item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of assets, to their residual

values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Motor Vehicles 4 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of
reporting period. Where the caxrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable

amount, it is written down immediately to its recovemble arnount. Cains and losses on disposals of
propefty, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are

included in the statement ofprofit or loss.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives lise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument ofanother entity.

Financial Assets

Classification

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortiscd cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model

for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics ofthe financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

AII financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition

of the financial asset.



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 3l March 2025

Subsequent measuremcnt

For the purpose ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

. Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)

. Financial assets at amortised cost
Whcn assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive

income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets m€asured at amortised cost (net ofany write down for impairment' ifany)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose

objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset

give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such

financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)

method less impairment, iiany. The losses arising liom impairment are recognised in the Statement

ofprofit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income ("FVTOCI")

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair

value, when asset is held with-in a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognizcd

in thc other comprehensive income.

FinancialAssetsmessuredatFairvaluethroughProfitorLoss(.tFVTPL'')

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair

value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity instruments which are held for fading are classified as at FVTPL AII other equity

initruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends.

are recognised in the other comprehensive income There is no recycling ofthe amounts from other

comprehensive income to profit or loss.

lnv€stment in Debt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amonised cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt instlument, whiCh does

not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FV'l'Pl'

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognised in the Statement ofprofit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows flom the asset havc

expired or Company has fiansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset'

lmpairment of Financial Assets

ln accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on tie
expected credit loss (ECL) model for
financial assets that are debt instrumentsp\

l? {nc,iuoizss):1\M
and trade receivables.



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2025

Financial Liabiliti€s

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently m€asured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

lnitial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank

overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fuir value through profit or loss.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the

liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated

by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part ofthe EIR. The EtR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement ofprofit and loss

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender

on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such

an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of thc original liability and the

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

D€rivative Financial Instrum€nt

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate

its foreign cunency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value

on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair

value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial

liabilities when the fair value is negative.

lnventories

Finished products including traded goods are valued at lower ofcost and net realisable valuc. Cost is

arrived on weighted average basis. The cost of Inventories has been comPuted to include all cost of
purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal

capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to theil present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the

estimated costs ofcompletion and selling €xpenses necessary to make the sale.

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for

and valued at net realisable value.



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statcments as on 31 March 2025

6.6

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date ofbalance sheet.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed

deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months oI lcss that are

reidily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
For the purpose ofthe statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-

term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an

integral part ofthe company's cash management.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indir€ct method, whereby net plofit before tax is adjusted for the

effects oftransactions ofa non-cash nature, any defenals or accruals ofpast or filture operating cash

receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash

flowi. The cash flow fiom operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are

segregated.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange mte

prevailing on the date ofthe transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign cunencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange

rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetaxy foreign cunency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is

recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

R€v€nue Recognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS I l5 (applicable fiom I April 2018)

Under Ind AS ll5, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was

satisfied, i.e. when ,control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were

transferred to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a s-Step Methodology which is as

follows:

Step l: Identiry the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identiry the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a Performance obligation

6.7

Sale of Goods



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2025

The group applied lnd AS I l5 using the modified retrospective approach'

Revenue is measured based on the fansaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is

specified in a contract with cuslomer. Revenue are net of estimated retums and taxes collected from

customers.

Revenue flom sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is tlansferred to the

customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control ofgoods is transfened upon

the shipment ofthe goods to the customer or when goods is made available to thc customer'

'l'he transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agrced

credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. variable consideration is only recognized when it is

highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

sales retum is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience,

market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue The methodology

and assumptions used io estimate retums are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade

practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions'

Inleresl income

lnterest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method'

Dividend income

Dividend from inv€stment is recognised as revenue when right to receivc is established'

Incomefrom Export Benefts and Other Incenlives

Ilxport benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the

gooda ur" exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurancc that the

ionditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received'

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an

expense for services rendered by 
"-pioy""s 

-during 
the accounting period. Short-term benefits given

bythe Company to its employees inciud-e salaries and wages and other non-monetary benefits'

Post-Employment Benelits - No provision has been made -in 
resPect of employee retirement

benefits as employees are not eligible for such benefits' Besides the company does not have any

pension schem; or any contracted agreement binding itselfto the employees'

Sharc-based compensation
Company has no share based compensation plan.

Borrowing Costs

Bonowingcostscompriseofotherbankcharges.Borrowingcostsdilectlyatftibutableto.the
acquisitlo"n, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time

to i.t ,"uOy for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset All other

boiowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Bonowing costs consist of interest

and otherlosts that an intity incurs in connection with the borrowing offunds. Transaction costs are

charged to statement ofproht and loss as financial expenses over the term ofborrowing'

6.9
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6.10 Lease

The company,s lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The company

assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract A conffact is, or contains, a

lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to confiol the use of an

identil.ied asset, the Company assesses whether: (l) the contract involves the use of an identified

asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic ben€fits from use of the asset through

the period ofthe laase and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use ofthe asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognizes a right-of-use asset c'Rou")
and a conesponding lease liability for all lease anangements in which it is a lessee, except fol leases

with a term oftwelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value lcases. For th€sc shofi-term

and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a

straight-line basis over tie term ofthe lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the

lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that

they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets afe initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the

Iease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the

lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Right-of-use assets are depreciated fiom the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the

shJrter ofthe lease term and useful life ofthe underlying asset. Right ofuse assets are evaluatcd for

recoverabiliry whenever events or changes in circumstances indicat€ that theil carrying amounts

may not be;ecoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,_the recoverable amount (i.e. the

hig'her of the fair value less cost to seu and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset

basis unless the assel does not generate cash flows that are largely indepcndent of those liom other

assets. In such cases, the recovirable amount is determined for the Cash Genemting Unit (CGU) to

which the asset belongs.

'fhe lcasc liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the prcsent value of the futurc lease

payments.Theleasepaymentsarediscountedusingthegenera|lyacceptedinterestrate.Lcase
iiuiiliti". *" remeasured with a conesponding adjustrnent to the related right of use asset if the

Company changes its assessment ifwhether it will exercise an extension or a termination option'

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified as financing cash flows'

LeasesforwhichtheCompanyisalessorisclassifiedasafinanceoroperatinglease.wheneverthe
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the

contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases ale classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

Transition
EffectivelApril,20lg,theCompanyadoptedlndASll6..Leases,'andappliedthestandardtoall
lease contracti existing on I April,2blg uiing the modified retrospectivc method and has takcn the

cumulative adjustment to retained eamings, on the date of initial application Consequently' thc

Cornpuny ,""Jrd"d th" lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at thc
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generally accepted interest mte and the right ofuse asset at its carrying amount as ifthe standard had

been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted

interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the ycar ended 3l March,

2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and thereforc will continuc to be reported under the

accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended 3 I March, 20 I 9

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of
NGN 6,763,975 and a lease liability ofNGN 7,270,613. The cumulative effect of applying the

standard, amounting to NGN 506,639 was debited to retained eamings, net of taxes The effcct of
this adoption is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and eamings per share. lnd

AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash

outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary ofpractical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economrc

environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less

than l2 months oflease term on the date of inilial applicalion.

c. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applied the practical cxpcdicnt to grandfather the asscssmcnt of which transactions are leases.

Accordingly, Ind AS I 16 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as Ieases

under Ind AS 17.

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at I April,2019 is 9%.

6.1I Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equiry

holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

period. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the

equiry holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that

could have been issued upon conversion ofall dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential

equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at

fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as ofthe beginning ofthc period,

unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are dctcrmined independently for each

period presented.

6.12 lncome Taxcs

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement ofprofit and loss exccpt to the extent

that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other

comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at thc amount

expected to be paid to or recovered fiom the tax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates

and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet datc.

Defened income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

M. ,oO.
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D€ferredtaxassetsar€reviewedateachreportingdateandarereducedtoth€extentthatitisno
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised'

Financiatassetsandfinancial|iabilitiesareoffsetandthenetamountisleportedinthebalance
sheet, if there is a cunenrly enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and-there is an

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the asiets and settle the liabilities simultaneously'

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country's tax rates and lax

laws that have b""n 
"na.t"J 

l. substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expecled to

apply to taxable income in the vears in which those tem-porary Oif*]:Tt:^T: :]fi:i:l',j,"".*
reiovered or settled. The effect ofchanges in tax rales on d€ferred income tax assets and llabllllles rs

recognized as income o, 
"*p"n"" 

in ihe period that includes the enactment or the substantivc

enactment date. A defened in"o-" tu* urr"i ir recognized to the extent that it is probablc that future

taxable profit will be available against which the de;uctible temporary differences and tax losses can

be utilized. The Group otlsets Jurrent tax assets and curent tax liabilities, where it has a legally

enforceablerighttosetofftherecognizedamountsandwhereitintendseithertosettleonanet
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously'

6.13 Dividends to Shareholders

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which

the dividends ur" upprou|J ly- trt" tn*"ft"fO"rs An/ inrerim dividend paid is recognised on

approval by Board of birectors Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity'

6.14 Provisions, Conting€nt Liabilities, Contingent Assets and commitments

General
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognized when the.Company has a present obligatiln 

llesat
or consrrucrrve) * , *Jl,;;;;;-.*"i""a ir is probable rhar an outflow of resources will be

iequir"O to ,"ttie the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimatc can be made'

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its

presentvalueandaredeterminedbasedonbestestimaterequiredtosettletheobligationatthe
balancesheetoate.rnesearereviewedateachbalancesheetdateandadjustedtoleflectthecunent
best estimates.

Ifthereisanyexpectationthatsomeolalloftheprovisionwillbereimbursed,thereimbursementis
recognised u" u 

""puru," ^r"i 
uuf onty *t en the reim_bursement is virtually certain. The expense

relating to a provision 
" i'r"*r"a-i"ilr" statement of profit and loss net of any virtually ccrtain

reimbursement

lfthe€ffectofthetimevalueofmoneyismaterial,provisionsalediscountedusingacurrentpre-tax
rate that reflects, *t * 

"pp-pri"a",'tri" 
iirl ,p".li" to the liability. when discounting is used, the

increase in the provision iue to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost'

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

. e prir"nt oUtigation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow ofresources

wiil be required to settle the obligarioni

. A present obligation arising from-past events, when. no reliable,esimatesis Possiblg

. e, i,J " 
obiigation arising from pa:! rlents, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
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Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statcments. Contingent assets
are neither recogniscd nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to partics for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retiremenl obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease amangements wherc the
Company has a binding obligation at the end of thc lease period to restore the leased premises in a
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the incomc
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added to or deducted from the cost ofthe asset.

6,l5 Fair value mcasurem€nt

'Ihe Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance shcet
date in accordance with lnd AS I13.

Ijinancials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:
r Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received ftom Bank.
. Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).
. Employce Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market pafticipants at the measurement date.

'l-he fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement ofa non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
genemte economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of rclevant observable inputs
and minimising the use ofunobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which lair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemcnts are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significanl to the fair value measurement as a whole:
. Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.
. Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to thc lair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

',,:..:ri=:-'r. 
,'..
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e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the farr
value measuement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recuning basis, the

Company determines whcther transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of asscts and

liabilities on the basis ofthe nature, characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the lcvel of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

6.16 Recentaccountingpronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing

standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from I April 2023

6.17 Critical accounting judg€ments' estimates and assumptions

'I'he preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Howcver,

uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material

adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe assets or liabilities in future periods.

(a) Arrangemcnt containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company detcrmines whelher the alrangemcnt is or

contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment ofan alTangement that contains a lease,

Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangemcnt into

those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis oftheir relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the

afiangements that such contracts are in the nature ofoperating leases.

(b) Multiple elemcnt contracts with vendors
The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods

and rendering of services. The consideration paid iVmay be determined independent of the

value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are

accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall considelation. The supplies

with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policics) have

been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the

Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current

treatment represents the substance ofthe arrangement.

(c) Property, Plant and equipment
Determination ofthe estimated useful life oftangible assets and the assessment as to which

components ofthc cost may be capitalized. Useful life oftangible assets is based on the life

ofuseful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPS ofrhe respective counfies. Assumptions also

need to be made, when the Company assesses, whother an asset may be capitalised and

which components ofthe cost ofthe asset may be capitalised.
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(d) Intangible Assets
lntemal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of lntangible assets.

Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

(e) Recognition and measurement ofdcfined benelit obligations
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial

assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount ratc, trcnds in salary escalation

and visted futu;e benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with

reference to markel yields at the end of the reporting peliod on the govemment bonds. The

period to maturity of the underlying bonds conespond to the probable maturity of the pos!

employment benefi t obligations.

(f) Rccognition of deferred tax assets and income tax'' 
Oefenied tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary diffcrences to thc cxtcnt

that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the dcductiblc

temporarydiff"'"nc"canbeutilised..[hemanagementassumcsthattaxablcplofitswiIlbc
available while recognising defened tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and

defenid tax asseis and liabiiities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the

carrying amount of defened tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual

outiome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in thc financial

statements.

Uncertaintiesexistwithrespecttotheinterpletationofcomplextaxregulations.andthe
amount and timing of futureiaxable income. Given the wide range of intcrnational business

relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contlactual agreements,

differencei arising between the actual results and the assumptions made' or future changcs

to such assumptio-ns, could necessitate fulule adjustments to tax income and expense already

recorded..fheCompanyestablishesprovisions,basedonreasonableestimates,forpossible
consequencesofauditsbythetaxauthoritiesoftherespectivecountriesinwhichitoperates.
Thc amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous

tax audits and diffeiing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the^

responsiblc tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arisc on a wide variety of

issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respeclive country'

Deferredtaxassetsarerecognisedforallunusedtaxlossestotheextentthatitisprobable
thattaxableplofitwillbea=vailableagainstwhichthelossescanbeuti|ised'Significant
managementjudgementisrequiredtodeterminetheamountofdeferredtaxasselsthatcan
be rei-ognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of futurc taxable profits' future tax

plannin! strategies and recent business performances and developments'

(g) Recognition and measurement ofother proYisions

The recognition and measurement of other piovisions are based on. the assessment of the

probabili! of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at

ih" buluni" sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary

fiom the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies
Manageirent judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of rcsources' if any'

in reslpect of"con'tingencies/ciaim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to

(h)

predict the outcome ofpending matters
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(i) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at theil normal value as reduced by

appropriate allowances for estimated inecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are

written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the

expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected

life of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default

and exiected losi rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to

the impairment calculation are basea on past history, existing market condition as well as

forward looking estimates at the end ofeach rePorting period'

0) Insurance claims
InsutanceclaimsarerecognisedwhentheCompanyhasreasonablecertaintyofrecovery'

(k) Impairment reviews
An.impairmentexistswhenthecarryingvalueofanassetorcashgeneratingunit(.CGU')
exceed's its recoverable amount. Recbverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs

tosellanditsvalueinuse.Thevalueinusecalculationisbasedonadiscount€dcashflow
model. In calculating the value in use, cenain assumptions are required to be made in

respect of highly uncertain matters, including managern-ent's expectations ,of growth in

EBITDA, Iong term gro\r'th mtes; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks

involved.
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E C.sh rnd s3h cquiv.lentt
Crsh rnd C.sh Equiv.l€r8

Balsnc. with Bsnls - h Cur.nt Accounts

9 Equity Shrre C.Pitrl

Odin!ry Shtrcs 6f NN I c&h
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Ordinary Shsrca ofNN I e0ch fullv Paid up

!l Mrrch 2025

NN

7,363,O33

?J65,61

3l M.rch 202,1

NN

!l |rt.tct 2Or5 tl M.ich !m5 Jl M.ich 2014 Jl l|trch 2024

Shrrcr Shrrcr
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60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,0m 60,000,000
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OTHEREQUITY
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Add :Tr sfen.d from sntcmmt ofPmfit & Loss

Ercl.nge f hcturiion R6.rve

Surpl$ in th. Stttcnena ofProna.nd rns
R|h.cc at thc b€Siming ofth. Ye.r

L.!s: Appropnttions
-Trmsfcrrcd m R.uin.d Emings

Erhncertthey.rrend
Torrl Oth.r Equity

LEASE LIABILITY

Other Curr.nt Lirbiliti..
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(9F 6p75)
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(EoJ20,490)

(70.251.124')

(460,458)
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(E0,3EE E57)
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17. Capital Management

Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and

market confidence and to sustain luture development of the business. Management monitors the

retum on capital, as well as the level ofdividends to equity shareholders. The Company'sobjective

for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and

support the growh of the Company. The company determined the capital requirement based on

annual op€rating plans and long ierm and other strategic investment plans.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose,

adjusted net debt is defined as debt less cash and cash equivalents and short term investments.

Adjusted equity comprises all components ofequity.

Company's policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 3l
March 2025 was as follows.

18. Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numemtor and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Share:

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

19. Employee Benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits',the Company offers its employees: Short-term

employee benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and othel allowances which are

paii immediately. The total consideration paid in 2024-25 was NcN 2,129,600 (Previous Year

NGN 2,129,600).

Retirement plan - No provision has been made in respect of employee rctirement bcncfits as

employees are not eligible for such benefits. Besides the company does not have any pension

Particuhrs

Debt

L€ss: Cash and Cash equivalents

Net Debt

Equity

\et Dcbt to [quity ratio

3l Mrrch 3l March

B

A,iB

7,363,033

(7,363,033)

(20,320,490)

16,560,649

(16,546.649\

(20.388.857)

Particulors

Basic snd Diluted Esrnings P€r Sh{re:

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS (NCN)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (NGN)

Profit attributable to Equity sharcholders for computing Diluted
EPS (NCN)
weightcd Average Number of Equity Shares outslanding - for
Basic EPS

Addr Dilutive effect of option outstandhg- Number of Equity
Shares
weighted Average Number ofEquity Shares for Diluted EPS

Face Value per Equity Share (NGN)

Basic f,arnings Per Share (NCN)

Diluted Errnings Pcr Shares (NGN)

B

C:A-B

D

E

F=DrE

A/D

c/F

3l March 2025

68,166

68,366

60,000,000

60,000,000

I

0.00

0.00

3l Msrch 2024

(460.45E)

(460,458)

60,000,000

60,000,000

I

(0.01)

(0.01)

scheme or any contracted agreement to the employees.
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20. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management

Fair value measurements

Fair value measurement of lease liabilities is not required.

I-evel I -The hierarchy in level 1 includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

This includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing

Lcvel 2 The fair value offinancial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like Mark
to Market derivative and Non-convenible Debentures) is determined using valuation techniques

which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entityspecific
estimates. lf all significant inputs required to fair value as instrument are observable, the

instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 If one or more of the signiflcant inputs is not based on observable market data, the

instrument is included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:
r Credit risk
. Liquidity risk
. Market risk
o Currency risk

Risk management framework
Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight ofthe
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and

monitoring the Company's risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee.

Company's risk management policies are established to identi[ and analyse the risks faced by it,
to set appropriate risk limits and contols and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company's activities. Company, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a

disciplined and constructive contol environment in which all employees understand their roles

and obligations.

Company's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the

Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of lhe risk
managem€nt fiamework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit comminee is

assisted in its oversight role by intemal audit. Intemal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc

revicws of risk management controls and procedures, the results ofwhich are reportcd to thc audit

NGN

Fi anciel Instruments by crtegory

Finrncirl Assets

C6sh and cash cquivalents

Totsl Financial Assets

Finrncirl Liqbilities

Lcasc Liability

Other Current Liabilities

Total Finencial Lirbilities

3l Mrrch 2025

FVTPL Amortised Cost

3l March 2024

FVTPL Amortised Cost

7,363,033

7J63,033

t6.560,649

16,560,649

3.230.5E5

36,949,506

40,1E0,09t

2',7,683,524

27,6E3,524

commlE€e .



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to th€ Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

i. Credit risk
Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with
its approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal to the
carrying amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject 10 stringent financial,
credit and legal verification process. In addition, rade receivable balances are monitored on

an ongoing basis to ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad

debts is not significanl.

ii. Liquidity risk
l,iquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cilsh

and collateral obligations without incuring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is
to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral
requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash

management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt

and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost. Working capital requirements are adequately

addressed by intemally generated funds. Trade receivables are kept within manageable levels.

iii. Market risk
Market dsk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, intercst

rates and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control

market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Financial

instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and

derivative financial instruments. Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,

including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interesl rates. All
transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the risk management committce.

The sensitivity analysis hasbeen prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of
financial instruments in foreign curencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact

of movements in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit

obligations, provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities.The sensitivity of the

relevant income statement item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market

risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of 3l March 2025

and 3l March 2024.

iv. Curr€ncy risk
The Company's foreign exchange risk results primarily fiom movements of thc Nigerian

Naira against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and

liabilities. The Company's transactional cunency exposures arise from its inventories which is
purchases from Holding Company in US dollar. Thc Company regularly reviews the trend of
the foreign exchange rates. Company does not have any assets / liability in USD.

a) Interest rate risk
The Company have no borrowings and hence there is no interest rate risk.

b) Pricc risk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity inves0:nents.

Notc on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities;

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contmct. 'fhe company

does not have any asset / liability at lhe year ending on 3l March 2025 and 3l March 2024.

21.
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

22. Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116- "Leases":

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease. These are generally cancellable and
ranges from I I months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually a$eeable
terms. Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions
imposed by these lease anangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents.
Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio ofleases with reasonably similar characterislics.

Right of use assets

Cost

Opcning Balance

Additions

Disposals

Closing Balance

Accumulrted deprecirtion snd impoirmcnt

Opening Balance

Depreciation

lmpairment loss

Eliminated on disposals of assets

Closing Balancc

3l M.rch 2025

l7,293.398

17,293,39E

14,062,814

3,230,5E5

3l Mrrch 2024

13,416,696

3,8t6,102

17,293,398

9,524,501

4,538,313

l?,293J98 14,062,814

Carrying amounts

Gross

Net

3l Mrrch 2025

17,293,39E

3l Dlrrch 2024

11,293,39E

3,230,5E4

Cash outllow on leases

(Repayment) / Addition oflease liabilities

Total crsh outflow on lerses

3l Msrch 2025

(3,230,585)

(3,230,585)

3l Mrrch 2024

(94s.7ss)

(94s,755)

Maturity analysis

Lcss tbxn I y€ar Over I yerrs

3l Morch 2025

Lease liabilities

3l Mrrch 2024

Lease liabilities
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

'fhere are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company.

Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relationships:
Category I - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)

25. Rcmuncration to Auditorsl NGN
Particulars
Audit Fees

3l March 2025 3l March 2024
698.750 531

Additional disclosures required by Schedule III (amendments dated 24 March
2021\ to the Companies Act, 2013:

A. Rclationship with struck offcompany

The Croup has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or

Companies Act,l956.

B. Undisclosed income

There is no income sunendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 196l, that has not been recorded in the books

ofaccount.

C. Utilisation ofborrowings availed from banks

The bonowings obtained by The Group from banks have been applied for the purposes for
which such loans were taken.

D, Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against The Group for holding benami

property under the Benami 'fransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of l988) and Rules made

thereunder,

E, Wilful defaulter

The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
govcmment or any govemment authority.

transactions ryere carried out with related
Sr. No. Particulrrs Category 3l M.rch 2025 3l March 2024

2. Erpel|scReimbursement:

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India I 22,962.857 20,l'33,795

Sr. No. PrrticulrE Crtegory 3l Mrrch 2025 3l March 202'l

l. Advance Paytble:

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India I 5,716,400 15,504,257

26.



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

F. Compliance with number oflayers ofcompanies

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013.

G. Compliance with approved scheme(s) ofarrangements

The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact
on current or previous financial year.

H. Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
'l'he Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current
or prevlous year.

L Utilisation ofbo owed funds and share premium
i. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or

entity(ies), including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding that the
lntermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

ii. The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or other.wise)
that lhe Group shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

b. (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to
current period's classification in order to comply with the requirements ofthe amended Schedule
III to the Companies Act,20l3 effective from 0l April2023.

The Company has one segment ofactivity namety ,,Pharmaceuticols".

In tcrms ofour report attached

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on b€half of Board ofDirectors of
Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
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/J GaurangShah

lrrreCtOr

Mumbai, 22 April 2025
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